
 
 

 
 
 
Date 11 June 2019 
 
 
To: Councillors Burdess, G Coleman, Galley, Hobson, Hugo, Mitchell, Owen, Walsh and 

Wilshaw  
 

The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 19 June 2019 at 6.00 pm 
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 

 

A G E N D A 
1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 

doing so state:  
 
(1) the type of interest concerned either a 
 

(a) personal interest 
(b) prejudicial interest  
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) 

 
and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 

 
2  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF TOURISM ECONOMY AND RESOURCES HELD ON 23 

JANUARY 2019  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To agree the minutes of the last meeting of the Tourism, Economy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee held on 23 January 2019 as a true and correct record. 

 
3  PUBLIC SPEAKING   

 
 To consider any applications from members of the public to speak at the meeting. 

 
4  TOURISM PERFORMANCE UPDATE  (Pages 7 - 16) 

Public Document Pack



 
 To consider an update on Tourism Performance, including the Destination Marketing 

Campaign’s results from 2018 and plans for 2019. 
 

5  EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS  (Pages 17 - 42) 
 

 To consider the Executive and Cabinet Member Decisions within the remit of the 
Committee, taken since the last meeting. 

 
6  FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 43 - 48) 

 
 To consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan, June 2019 – September 2019, 

within the remit of the Committee. 
 

7  PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2018/2019  (Pages 49 - 80) 
 

 To consider the report of the Director of Resources on the Provisional Revenue Outturn 
for 2018/2019 compared with the approved budget and the capital expenditure in the 
year ended 31 March 2019 with sources of funding. 

 
8  TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 (Pages 81 - 100) 
 

 To consider the Treasury Management Outturn Report for the year ended 31 March 
2019. 

 
9  LEISURE SERVICES UPDATE  (Pages 101 - 120) 

 
 To consider an update on the work undertaken, future plans and performance of 

Leisure Services. 
 

10  PARKS AND GREEN ENVIRONMENT SERVICE UPDATE  (Pages 121 - 132) 
 

 To consider an update on work undertaken, future plans and performance of the Park 
and Green Environment Service. 

 
11  SCRUTINY WORKPLAN  (Pages 133 - 146) 

 
 To consider the Workplan and to monitor the implementation of Committee 

recommendations, together with any suggestions that Members may wish to make for 
scrutiny review topics, to note the Single Use Plastics update and approve the 
establishment of a Community Safety Partnership Review Panel. 

 
12  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   

 
 To note the date and time of the next meeting as Wednesday, 9 October 2019, 

commencing at 6pm. 
 



 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact John Greenbank, Senior Democratic 
Governance Adviser, Tel:01253477229, e-mail john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019

Present: 

Councillor Hunter (in the Chair)

Councillors

Callow
Mrs Callow JP

Critchley
Galley

Mitchell
Ryan

In Attendance: 

Alan Cavill, Director of Communication and Regeneration
Steve Thompson, Director of Resources
John Paul Lovie, Head of Waste Policy and Partnerships
John Greenbank, Democratic Governance Senior Adviser (Scrutiny)

Councillor Gillian Campbell, Deputy Leader of the Council
Councillor Fred Jackson, Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Highways
Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Enterprise and Economic 
Growth
Councillor Mrs Christine Wright, Cabinet Member for Housing

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 14 NOVEMBER 2018

The Committee agreed that the minutes of the last meeting of the Tourism, Economy and 
Resources Scrutiny Committee held on 14 November 2018 be signed by the Chairman as a 
true and correct record

3 PUBLIC SPEAKING

The Committee noted that there were no applications to speak by members of the public 
on this occasion.

4 EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS

The Committee considered the Executive and Cabinet Member decisions, within its remit, 
taken since the last meeting of the Committee on 14 November 2018.

Members discussed Executive Decision EX49/2018 regarding the Blackpool Airport 
Strategy. The Committee referred to a leaflet publicised in the early 2000s regarding the 
development of the airport to 2030 and noted that £90m of investment and 5,000 jobs 
would be created by 2020, it was queried if the Council still aimed to achieve these 
targets. In response Mr A Cavill, Director Communications and Regeneration, responded 
that the ownership of the airport had changed hands twice since the publication of the 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019

leaflet and that events such as the 2008 financial crisis had meant that plans outlined in it 
were no longer current. While the Council aimed to create jobs at the airport the return 
of large scale passenger flights to Blackpool was no-longer financially viable. It was 
estimated that 1.5 million people would need to use the airport per year to generate a 
profit, whereas the highest passenger numbers recorded during the operation of large 
scale passenger flights had been 650,000.

Despite this smaller scale business flights such as in support of the offshore oil and gas 
industry where ongoing. Consideration of other sources of income from the airport was 
also being undertaken.

Members also queried if an update on the plans for the airport could be provided to all 
Councillors. Mr Cavill confirmed he would be happy to provide a briefing at Members’ 
request.

The Committee also discussed Executive Decision EX50/2018 in relation to the release of 
land for business use in North Blackpool. Members queried the planned usage of the land 
and who it was envisioned would operate there. Councillor M Smith, Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Enterprise and Economic Development, responded that the land would be 
used for commercial mid-sized office units. Mr Cavill added that there was a strong 
demand for this kind of usage within Blackpool and that there were no plans to 
industrialise the site.

5 FORWARD PLAN

The Committee considered the contents of the Council’s Forward Plan January 2019 to 
March 2019, relating to the portfolios of Cabinet Members whose responsibilities fell 
within its remit.

Members queried what percentage of outstanding loans from the Business Loans Fund 
represented ‘bad’ debt. Mr Cavill responded that a very small proportion of outstanding 
loans constituted ‘bad’ debt, representing less than 0.5% of the total.

The Committee also discussed the Lancashire Flood Risk Strategy, decision reference 
11/2018, and the Council’s relationship with United Utilities. Members expressed the 
view that following two meetings with United Utilities representatives to discuss the 
Anchorsholme flooding, the company still had yet to fulfil its duty of care to the residents 
of Blackpool. Councillor Jackson, Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and 
Highways, responded that he shared the Committee’s concerns but that there was a need 
for an ongoing relationship with the company as Blackpool’s utilities provider but that it 
should be based on honesty and trust. He also informed Members that he would be 
attending meetings with United Utilities in the near future where he would pass on the 
concerns expressed.

Members also discussed a letter to United Utilities from the Chairman that was being 
drafted to outline what the Committee believed to be the outstanding questions 
following the meetings attended by the company on 25 April 2018 and 14 November 
2018. It was queried if the publication of the Section 19 report into the Anchorsholme 
flooding could delayed until the response to the Chairman’s letter had been received. Page 2



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019

Councillor Jackson responded that he would consult with Officers regarding the report 
and any response provided by United Utilities.

The Town Centre Parking Strategy, decision reference 4/2019, was also discussed. 
Members reported ongoing issues with the lift at the West Street Car Park that had 
affected accessibility over the Christmas and New Year period. Concerns were raised that 
this may have put people off coming into the town centre and that it had an adverse 
impact on businesses at an important time of year for trading. Councillor Smith 
responded that the concerns would be investigated with a view to finding a solution as 
soon as possible.

Discussion also took place regarding the Business Rates Retention Scheme. Mr Thompson 
informed the Committee that the Council was part of a pilot pool of Lancashire 
authorities that had applied to retain 75% of business rates collected in 2019/2020. 
Formal approval of Blackpool’s participation in the scheme had been agreed at the 21 
January 2019 meeting of the Executive. It was envisaged that the money raised from 
participation in the scheme could be used to support economic growth across the 
Lancashire footprint.

A query was raised regarding partnership working and potential income from the Local 
Full Fibre Network. Mr Thompson replied that the Executive had approved progression of 
the project and that Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport’s preferred 
approach would be to co-operate with partners in the development of the network.

6 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MONITORING AS AT MONTH 8 2018/2019

Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources, presented the Financial Monitoring Report 
outlining the level of spending against revenue and capital budgets for the first eight 
months to 30 November 2018.

The Committee discussed the ongoing overspend in Children’s Services and queried if 
officers were aware of any work being undertaken on a national level to identify the 
causes of the problem. Mr Thompson replied that this was a topical issue affecting a 
number of councils and that a relevant National Audit Office report had been issued the 
previous day (22 January 2019).

Members also asked how the Children’s Services overspend had affected the Council’s 
budget as a whole. Mr Thompson replied that work was ongoing to manage the effects of 
the overspend and that underspends in other services would be utilised to mitigate the 
impact. A final review of the Council’s financial position would be undertaken in the 
Provisional Outturn report 2018/2019.

The overspend of £234k due to the loss of catering contracts was queried by the 
Committee. Members asked what monitoring was undertaken of contracts and if it was 
sometimes better to relinquish bad contracts than continue them. Mr Thompson 
responded that this was sometimes the case but that every contract was monitored to 
ensure that it delivered value for money.

The Committee queried a reference to delayed income in Communications and Page 3



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019

Regeneration contributing to an overall overspend. Mr Cavil responded that the income 
related to support given to a film project produced in Blackpool which would not 
generate income until it had been released, however an initial payment was expected to 
be forthcoming soon.

Members also discussed the reduction in bus and tram usage, which had contributed to 
an underspend in Concessionary fares, and if this had been caused by the ongoing 
regeneration work in the town centre. Mr Thompson replied that reductions in public 
transport patronage was a national issue caused by behavioural changes that saw 
increasing numbers of people using cars as their primary mode of transport besides 
changes to the state pension age. It was also noted that there would be a corresponding 
negative effect on Blackpool Transport Services as a result.

The remaining level of funds available in Ward Budgets was highlighted, with Mr 
Thompson informing Members that the figures shown represented the position at the 
end of November 2018 and that current levels would be lower and would be reported in 
the month nine Financial Monitoring report.

7 BLACKPOOL TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION UPDATE

Councillor Gillian Campbell, Deputy Leader of the Council, Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration, Enterprise and Economic Development, and Mr Alan Cavill, 
Director of Communications and Regeneration, presented an update on the ongoing and 
planned Town Centre Regeneration projects.

In relation to the proposed leisure development in Blackpool central the Committee 
queried if consideration had been given to underground parking instead of the 
development of an above ground multi storey car park which could then free up land for 
further leisure development. Mr Cavill responded that the sandy nature of the land and 
the close proximity of the sea meant that any underground development would be costly 
due to a need to prevent flooding. The low value of the land also made such development 
financially unviable.

The Committee queried the bid to the Coastal Communities Fund to support the 
development of Blackpool Museum and what the impact would be on the project should 
the bid fail. Mr Cavill responded that the bid represented only one of the funding streams 
for the project. A substantial bid had been submitted to the Heritage Lottery Fund and 
was at an advanced stage. The outcomes of bids would become known by the end of 
2019 and the Council was confident that funding could be secured to support the project.

Members asked what the bid to the Future High Street Fund would be used for if 
successful. In particular the Committee asked if the possibility of creating clusters of 
independent retailers in the town centre and the conversion some retail areas into high 
quality housing stock had been discussed. Mr Cavill responded that the bid was currently 
under development and that a number of options were being considered to increase the 
number of people coming into the centre of town, including independent clusters and the 
creation of additional office space to attract businesses to relocate their staff into the 
town centre.

Page 4



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019

8 SINGLE USE PLASTICS POLICY UPDATE

Mr John-Paul Lovie, Head of Waste Policy and Partnerships, presented a report on the 
development of a Single-Use Plastics Policy and Charter to reduce the usage of plastics by 
the Council and its wholly-owned companies.

The Committee asked if the policy would sit within a wider framework for making 
Blackpool ‘greener’. Mr Lovie replied that the Government had produced a strategy in 
December 2018 which sought to incentivise the use of environmentally friendly materials 
and create greater opportunities for community involvement in ‘green’ projects.

Mr Lovie also explained, in response to a question from Members, that there would be 
possible cost implications in sourcing environmentally friendly materials for use by the 
Council but that this should be offset against the benefits to the environment. It was 
further noted that some of the Council’s wholly-owned companies, in particular Blackpool 
Operating Company Ltd, had already made progress in introducing sustainable products 
and that the Council could benefit from their experience when sourcing its own materials.

Members asked that their congratulations be passed on to Blackpool Operating Company 
Ltd for their work in reduction the use of plastic and the introduction of recyclable 
materials at the Sandcastle Waterpark.

The Committee asked if the Council would be working to encourage businesses and 
residents within the town to reduce their plastic usage as part of the policy. Mr Lovie 
explained that it was important that the Council improved its own position in relation to 
plastic usage first so that it could set an example before working with other groups within 
Blackpool.

It was queried if additional funding was available to support the policy. Mr Lovie 
responded that there were limited additional funding opportunities open to the Council 
but that officers would investigate any that arose.

9 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN

Members considered the Committee’s Workplan for the upcoming year.

It was agreed that following discussion at the meeting that updates on the Town Centre 
Regeneration and Single Use Plastic Policy should be added to the Workplan for 
consideration at the June 2019 meeting of the Committee.

Members were also informed that the Council’s Audit Committee had requested the 
Committee consider the Council’s channel shift process which had been designed to 
improve overall service delivery by better signposting the Council’s services via the 
website. Members agreed to add this to the Workplan as an agenda item for a future 
meeting of the Committee.

The input from the scrutiny task and finish group into the Green and Blue Infrastructure 
Strategy was also noted.

Page 5



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2019

10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Committee noted the date and time of the next meeting as 19 June 2019 
commencing at 6.00pm, subject to confirmation at Annual Council.

 
 
 
 
Chairman
 
(The meeting ended at 7.20 pm)
 
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact:
John Greenbank, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser (Scrutiny)
Tel: 01253 477229
E-mail: john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk

Page 6



 
 

 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Philip Welsh, Head of Tourism and Communications 

Date of Meeting 19 June 2019 

 

TOURISM PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report 

1.1 
 

To consider an update on Tourism Performance, including the Destination Marketing 
Campaign’s results from 2018 and plans for 2019. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To consider the performance of Tourism and associated services and to identify any further 
areas for scrutiny as appropriate. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To ensure constructive and robust scrutiny of the Tourism and associated services, which has 
been requested by the Committee. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by 
the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered 

3.4 Not applicable 
 

4.0 Council Vision/Priority: 
 

4.1 Tourism performance indicators are aligned to the Council’s vision: “The UK’s number one 
family resort with a thriving economy that supports a happy and healthy community who are 
proud of this unique town”.  
 
The relevant Priority in the Council Plan, is Priority 1: Maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool  

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
 
 
5.1.3 
 

This update provides data giving an insight into performance and trends within Blackpool’s 
visitor economy.  
 
The first report provides the results of the Omnibus household survey covering the first four 
months of 2019. Note that Omnibus differs from the annual STEAM survey in that STEAM 
provides a summary of all visits (adults and children) whereas Omnibus only measures adult 
visits. The STEAM full-year results for 2018 will be available in late summer. 
 
The second part of the report highlights some of the statistics drawn from the monthly 
Visitor Economy Performance Indicator reports over the same four-month period, covering 
items such as tram and car park patronage, Resort Pass sales, footfall and use of tourist 
information services. 
 
The third part of this update provides a summary of headline results from the 2018 Blackpool 
Has It All destination marketing campaign. This activity, which saw an investment of over 
£600k in destination marketing and promotion, is co-funded by VisitBlackpool, Merlin 
Entertainments, Pleasure Beach, Winter Gardens, Blackpool Transport, Sandcastle Waterpark 
and other operators within the visitor economy.  
 

5.2 Omnibus Visitor Survey, January to April 2019 
 

5.2.1 The tables below show that the 2019 tourism season got off to a very positive start with both 
February half-term and Easter delivering strong growth in visitor numbers. 
 

5.2.2 The survey shows that the number of adult visits between January and April grew by almost 
400,000 compared to the same period in 2018. 
 

5.2.3 The bulk of the growth was seen in February and April, where exceptional weather gave the 
resort one of its busiest Easter weekends on record. 
 

5.2.4 All of the main visitor attractions showed significant growth in April, with one reporting its 
highest ever visitor numbers for the period. 
 

5.2.5 Encouragingly, the number of overnight stays over the four months almost doubled – from 
550,000 in 2018 to just over a million in 2019. 
 

5.2.6 i) Headline Visitor Numbers 

 
Table 1: Visits to Blackpool - Spring Season 

(Millions) 
2019 2018  

Total Adult Visits  
1.79 1.42  

Unique Adult Visitors 
1.13 0.92  

 

  

Page 8



5.2.7 ii) Type of visit 

 
Table 2: Types of visit to Blackpool - Spring Season 

(Millions) 2019 2018    2019 2018  

Overnight Stay 1.07 0.55   A day trip 0.67 0.89  

Holiday/Leisure  
0.53 0.31  

 Holiday/Leisure  
0.48 0.33  

Specific Leisure 
Event, Conf or Ex 0.05 0.04  

 Specific Leisure 
Event, Conf or Ex 0.03 0.03  

Specific Business 
Event, Conf or Ex 0.00 0.01  

 Specific Business 
Event, Conf or Ex 0.00 0.05  

Business or 
Education 0.09 0.04  

 Business or 
Education 0.05 0.26  

Non-leisure 
0.00 0.01  

 Non-leisure 
0.04 0.03  

Visit Friends 
0.40 0.14  

 Visit Friends 
0.08 0.20  

Don't knows 
0.06 0.03  

  
   

 

  
5.2.8 iii)  Timing 

 
Table 3: Timing of visit - Spring Season 

(Millions) 2019 2018  

 

January 
 

0.31 
 

0.23 
 

February 
0.45 0.26  

March 
0.31 0.47  

April 
0.65 0.45  

Unsure 0.05 0.05  
 

  
5.2.9 v) Reasons For Visiting 

 
Table 4: Single most important aspect of visit - Spring Season 

  2019 2018 

The Pleasure Beach 16% 11% 

Family Friendly Attractions 16% 9% 

The Coastal Location 14% 23% 

Visiting Friends and Relatives 14% 15% 

Don't Know 11% 5% 

Page 9



Entertainment / Night Life 9% 5% 

Other Aspect 8% 10% 

Business Offer 5% 3% 
 

 

5.3 Visitor Economy Performance Indicators, January to April 2019 
 
Ticket Sales 
The hard indicators with the set of Visitor Economy Performance Indicators (ticket sales) show 
significant growth in numbers of tram and rail passengers compared to 2018 and in the sales of the 
Resort Pass. Although patronage on car parks is slightly down, the revenue performance is well 
ahead of last year, suggesting that car park users are staying for longer periods. 
 

5.3.1 Council Car Parks: Monthly Ticket Sales 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 56,764 56,680 

February 67,171 66,802 

March 74,177 73,038 

April 94,116 96,639 

Total 292,228 293,159 

 Note that Pay & Display ticket sales at Council operated car parks continue to rise year on year 
with over 1.1 million sales in 2018.  

 

5.3.2 Monthly Tram Passengers 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 212,465 200,050 

February 258,010 228,303 

March 271,853 283,180* 

April 407,784* 377,175 

Total 1,150,112 1,088,708 

 Note that the tram network goes from strength to strength with almost 5.2 million passengers 
using the service in 2017. In 2018, monthly passenger records were set in March whilst April 
2019 achieved its best figure to date.  

 

  

Page 10



5.3.3 Inbound Rail: Monthly Sales 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 39492 30528 

February 66399 43152 

March 67073 49658 

April No data available No data available 

Total 172,964 123,338 

 Note that 2018 passenger numbers were negatively impacted by rail electrification works 
 

5.3.4 Resort Pass: Monthly Sales 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 38 115 

February 100 166 

March 607 498 

April 1,383* 751 

Total 2,128 1,530 

 Note that a monthly Resort Pass sales record was set in April 2019. 
 

5.3.5 Footfall 
 
Footfall figures in both the town centre and Promenade are down compared to last year, though 
there are probably different reasons for this. 
 

5.3.6 Town centre footfall is undoubtedly suffering in towns and cities throughout the UK in what is a 
very volatile period for the retail industry and Blackpool is clearly not immune to that. 
 

5.3.7 Promenade footfall is only measured on the east side of the Promenade close to Coral Island and 
does not necessarily reflect footfall on the west side of the tram tracks.  
 

5.3.8 Hence, during periods of good weather when many visitors head for the beach (as experienced 
over the February and Easter holidays), these footfall movements are not counted.  
 

5.3.9 A more accurate indicator of activity on the seafront is probably the number of tram tickets sold – 
both February and April (which include the school holiday periods) as illustrated in the table above. 
 

5.3.10 Town Centre: Monthly Footfall (24hr) 
 

Month 2019 2018 

January 712,408 831,932 

February 788,722 837,412 

March 761,672 842,255 

April 1,245,363 1,300,214 

Total 3,508,165 3,811,813 
 

  

Page 11



  

5.3.11 Promenade: Monthly Footfall (24hr) 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 107,398 120,041 

February 167,892 181,346 

March 143,355 148,763 

April 330,147 406,711 

Total 748,792 856,861 
 

  

5.3.12 Visitor Information 
 

5.3.13 The Tourist Information Centre (TIC) on the Tower Festival Headland continues to attract 
significant numbers of visitors. The centre is an information point, but also a place where visitors 
can buy attraction tickets at a competitive price. April, which included the Easter holidays, recorded 
a record number of visits for the month. 
 

5.3.14 The VisitBlackpool.com website complements the TIC offer by giving prospective visitors a 
comprehensive picture on attractions, events, shows and accommodation. 
 

5.3.15 Over the course of a year, it attracts more than 1.5m users. 
 

5.3.16 *Note: February 2018 website activity was distorted by the Britney Spears concert announcement, 
which gave a huge spike in site visits. April this year was adversely affected by security issues, 
which took the site down for two days over the holiday period. 
 

 Tourist Information Centre: Monthly Visits 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 979 1,271 

February 1,799 1,645 

March 2,814 2,911 

April 4,363* 4,174 

Total 9,955 10,001 

 Note that a monthly TIC visits record was set in April 2019. 
 

 VisitBlackpool.com: Unique Monthly Website Visits 
  

Month 2019 2018 

January 63,201 61,510 

February 66,361 77,359 

March 77,921 72,364 

April 82,738 90,161 

Total 290,221 301,394 
 

  

Page 12



  

5.4 Blackpool Has It All Destination Marketing 2018/19 
 

5.4.1 The annual destination marketing activity in association with Merlin was launched in 2014 
under the banner of “Blackpool’s Back”.  
 

5.4.2 The key objective of the multi-media campaign is to drive volumes of visitors to the resort, 
but also help change public perceptions of the resort by showcasing the huge investment 
that has been made in attractions and tourism infrastructure. 
 

5.4.3 Since then the campaign has evolved into “Blackpool Has It All” and the number of funding 
partners has grown each year. 
 

5.4.4 In 2018, the campaign followed a tried and tested formula of TV advertising, digital activity 
and PR. These are some of the headline results: 
 

5.4.5 Digital 
 

5.4.6  Resort Pass sales (which is one of the main calls to action for the campaign) reached 

17,102, an increase of 2,218 on 2017 making it the most successful year  

 We had over 15 million impressions from our Facebook content/video and ads. We 

targeted families with children and younger couples (under 35) targeting the North of 

England, Scotland and the Midlands 

 Display ads generated 6.5 million impressions and 23,500 clicks to the VisitBlackpool 

website with 3,809 Resort Pass purchases 

 The TV ad on YouTube was served 244,000 times to audiences in the key regions. 

 

5.4.7 TV Ad 
 

5.4.8  The 2018 campaign saw the creating of a new TV ad, replacing the one that had run since 

the start of the destination marketing activity in 2014. The ad was purposely created in a 

modular format, so that elements can be easily swapped in future years. 

 The ad ran in Scotland from mid-June with the intention of hitting one of Blackpool’s key 

target markets ahead of the school summer holidays. The weighting and duration of this 

part of the destination campaign allowed us to reach almost 60% of the target audience 

in Scotland with the average housewife plus children viewer getting more than a dozen 

opportunities to see the ad across the campaign. 

 The remainder of the TV advertising was focused on the north of England from mid-July 

to the end of August, with some upweighting towards the Granada region. The scale of 

activity allowed us to reach more than 50% of the target audience. 

 The standard TV activity was complemented by Video On Demand (VOD) advertising 

which is an essential part of the mix giving the fragmentation of the broadcast landscape 

and the increasing propensity for viewers to watch TV on “catch up”. VOD is typically 

Page 13



watched by a younger demographic, helping to target the 16-25 and young couple 

audiences. 

 

5.4.9 Research from TV ad 
 

5.4.10  44% of people said that they had seen the resort advert 

 87% said that they strongly agreed/agreed that the TV ad would encourage people to 

visit Blackpool. 

 83% said that they strongly agreed/agreed that the “the ad created an appealing 

impression for me” 

 69% said that they strongly agreed/agreed that the TV ad increased their awareness of 

the attractions available in the resort. 

 71% said that they strongly agreed/agreed that the TV ad increased their awareness of 

the events that happen in Blackpool. 

 

5.4.10 PR Activity 
 

5.4.11 This was split across two distinct areas – UK-wide and a more bespoke campaign for 
Scotland. It yielded the following results: 
 

5.4.12  Eight TV features (compared to one in 2017) including BBC Breakfast, This Morning, Blue 

Peter, North West Tonight and Scottish TV 

 17 Press trips – focused on nationals and the regionals with the highest circulation 

 19 national newspaper print or online hits 

 103 regional publication hits. 

 Two national radio hits 

 Two YouTube films on the resort that each secured in excess of 100,000 views 

 More than 100 social posts including BBC Breakfast, Blue Peter, North West Tonight) 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 
 

  

Page 14



8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None  

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None  
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None  
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

Not applicable 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None  
 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 

Date of Meeting:  19 June 2019 

 

EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS 
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 The Committee to consider the Executive and Cabinet Member decisions within the 
remit of the Committee, taken since the last meeting. 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the Leader of the Council or the 
relevant Cabinet Member in relation to the decisions taken. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To ensure that the opportunity is given for all Executive and Cabinet Member 
decisions to be scrutinised and held to account. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 

across Blackpool”. 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 

Attached at the appendix to this report is a summary of the decisions taken, which 
have been circulated to Members previously. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



5.2 This report is presented to ensure Members are provided with a timely update on the 
decisions taken by the Executive and Cabinet Members.  It provides a process where 
the Committee can raise questions and a response be provided. 
 

5.3 Members are encouraged to seek updates on decisions and will have the opportunity 
to raise any issues. 
 

5.4 Witnesses/representatives 
 

5.4.1 The following Cabinet Members are responsible for the decisions taken in this report 
and have been invited to attend the meeting: 
 

 Councillor Simon Blackburn, Leader of the Council 

 Councillor Gillian Campbell, Deputy Leader of the Council (Place and Tourism) 

 Councillor Fred Jackson, Cabinet Member for Environmental, Transport and 
Climate Change 

 Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Job 
Creation 

 Councillor Maria Kirkland, Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and 
Leisure 

 Councillor Neal Brookes, Cabinet Member for Housing and Welfare Reform 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices:  
 Appendix 5(a) Summary of Executive and Cabinet Member decisions 

taken. 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 None. 
9.0 Financial considerations: 

 
9.1 
 

None. 
 

Page 18



 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5(a) 

DECISION / OUTCOME DESCRIPTION NUMBER DATE CABINET 
MEMBER 

ARNOLD AVENUE PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council approved the 
recommendations as follows; 
 
To not proceed with the Public Space Protection Order 
for Arnold Avenue. 

Consideration of all representations received in 
response to the proposal to make a gating order 
restricting public access at all times to the highway 
that runs from the side of 3 and 5 Arnold Avenue in a 
northerly direction to the rear of 21 and 33 Broadway, 
Blackpool, by all persons except for adjoining owners 
and occupiers, the emergency services and other 
service providers. 

PH03/2019 11/01/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 
(Tourism, 
Economic 
Growth and 
Jobs) 

COUNCIL PLAN 2019-2024 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 
To recommend to the Council to approve the Council 
Plan. 
 

To present the Council Plan 2019-2024 for approval. EX1/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATES DISCRETIONARY 
DISCOUNT POLICY 2019/2020 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To note the changes to the Council Tax and 
Business Rates Discretionary Discount Policy as 
set out in paragraphs 5.1 – 5.5, of the Executive 
report. 

2. To recommend Council to agree the amended 
Council Tax and Business Rates Discretionary 
Discount Policy as set out in Appendix 3a, to the 
Executive report. 

 

To provide an update and variation to the Council Tax 
and Business Rates Discretionary Discount Policy 
previously approved by the Executive on 10 
December 2018. This is owing to the announcement 
by the Chancellor of the Exchequer in the budget that 
local authorities have the discretion from 1 April 2019 
to award businesses a new retail relief, funded by 
central government. An amended scheme, based on 
recent government advice, has been designed and 
included in the updated policy document to clarify 
and expand other discretionary reliefs available to 
businesses and the impact of rates retention pilot 
status and to include a statement relating to 
fraudulent applications. 
 

EX2/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

P
age 21



APPENDIX 5(a) 

INSURANCE PROCUREMENT EXERCISE 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To approve the outcome of the Council’s 
procurement exercise for the provision of 
insurance cover, saving approximately £340,000 
per year.  It should be noted that there will be a 
slight decrease to the overall saving once the 
cost of insuring Blackpool Coastal Housing’s 
motor fleet has been confirmed. 

2. To delegate responsibility to the Director of 
Resources to undertake a separate quotation 
exercise for the provision of cyber liability and 
Directors and Officers insurance. 

 

To consider the outcome of the recent procurement 
exercise for the Council’s insurance provision from 
the 1 April 2019 for a three year period, with the 
option to extend for a further two years. 

EX4/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

LANCASHIRE 75% BUSINESS RATE POOLINNG 
ARRANGEMENT 2019/2020 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 
To formally agree to participate in the Lancashire-wide 
75% Business Rates Pilot Pool 2019/20 and ask officers 
to ensure that the Revenue Budget report submitted to 
Council in February 2019 reflects the Council’s 
participation. 
 

To explain the background behind a Lancashire-wide 
bid to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) to establish a Business Rates 
Pool in 2019/20 that should bring additional funding 
of approximately £9.6m into the economic area and 
to seek formal agreement for Blackpool Council’s 
participation. 

EX3/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

P
age 22



APPENDIX 5(a) 

DEVELOPMENT OF NEW COUNCIL HOMES AT 
TROUTBECK CRESCENT, MERESIDE 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To agree that Appendix 7b – Estimated 
construction costs of the new development is 
not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

2. That the Council bids to Homes England for 
capital grant to help fund the construction of 
new Council homes for Affordable Rent at 
Troutbeck Crescent. 

3. That the Council procures a building contractor 
to construct new Council homes at Troutbeck 
Crescent, and that subject to grant funding being 
made available and planning approval received, 
authority is given to the Head of Legal to enter 
into a design and build contract for a cost not 
exceeding the sum set out in Appendix 7b, to the 
Executive report. 

4. To grant delegated authority to the Head of 
Legal to authorise the relevant legal documents 
to progress the scheme including to the de-
designation of the public open space on the site. 

 

To seek approval to proceed with a development of 
75 new Council homes at Troutbeck Crescent, 
Mereside, following a decision on 21 May 2018 to 
demolish existing flats there for re-development. 

EX6/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor Mrs 
Christine 
Wright, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Housing 

P
age 23



APPENDIX 5(a) 

LOCAL FULL FIBRE NETWORK 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To endorse proceeding with the Blackpool Local 
Full Fibre Network Plan, in line with the steps in 
the report and Build Out map attached at 
Appendix 6a, to the Executive report. 

2. To agree that the Council joins the already 
established Digital Infrastructure co-operative. 

3. To agree to support further build out of the fibre 
network by co-operative Members subject to 
Highways and Planning regulations. 

4. To support Demand Stimulation activities to 
encourage the take up of Full Fibre Connectivity 
by Blackpool Businesses and Residents to enable 
them to better participate in the growing Digital 
Economy. 

5. To support the establishment of an internal 
barrier busting team made up of IT, Highways, 
Planning and co-operative Members to co-
ordinate the build out of the fibre network and 
establish a dig-once principle to individual 
properties and businesses. 

6. To authorise the Head of Legal to enter into all 
required legal documentation relating to this 
Project. 

 

To seek approval to proceed with the Blackpool Local 
Full Fibre Network Plan. 

EX5/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

P
age 24



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FINANCIAL PERFORAMNCE MONITRING AS AT MONTH 
8 2018/2019 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To note the report. 
2. To continue to lobby Government (HM Treasury, 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government and the Department for Education 
in particular) along with local authority peers, 
the Local Government Association and the 
Association of Directors of Children’s Services for 
more funding to cope with the mounting 
demand and new burdens presenting in 
Children’s Services. 

3. To require the respective directors and Director 
of Resources to continue to closely monitor and 
manage service financial and operational 
performances, specifically Children’s Services, 
Strategic Leisure Assets and Parking Services. 

 

The level of spending against the Council’s Revenue 
and Capital budgets for the first 
8 months to 30 November 2018. 

EX7/2019 21/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATE RETURN 1 FOR 
2019/2020 
 
The Leader of the Council agreed the recommendations 
as follows; 
 
To formally approve the National Non-Domestic Rate 
Return 1 for 2019/20 as attached at Appendix A to the 
report. 
 

The Council as a Billing Authority is required under the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 to complete a 
National Non-Domestic Rate Return 1 (NNDR 1) each 
year. This provides an authority’s calculation of its 
non-domestic rate income for the following financial 
year and the sums due to Central Government and 
relevant precepting authorities. This information for 
2019/20 must be notified to the Secretary of State 
and to relevant preceptors by 31st January 2019. The 
return is attached at Appendix A and reflects the new 
75% retention rate applicable to members of the 
Lancashire-wide 75% Business Rate Pilot Pool in 
2019/20 (Decision EX3/2019 from the Executive 
meeting on 21 January 2019 refers). 

PH9/2019 31/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

P
age 25



APPENDIX 5(a) 

COUNCIL TAX - SETTING THE BASE 2019/2020 
 
The Leader of the Council agreed the recommendations 
as follows; 
 

1. To approve the calculation of the Council’s tax 
base for 2019/20. 

2. That in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 and 
the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2003, 
declare that the Council Tax base for 2019/20 
should be 36,521 properties. 

 

To consider the Council Tax base for 2019/20 as 
outlined in the report attached at Appendix A. 

PH10/2019 31/01/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

DESIGNATION OF MARTON MOSS CONSERVATION 
AREA 
 
The Deputy Leader agreed the recommendations as 
follows; 
 
To designate the area of Marton Moss shown on the 
plan attached at Appendix B as a Conservation Area, to 
be known as Marton Moss Conservation Area. 
 

To request formal adoption of the Conservation Area 
Appraisal for Marton Moss.  This will complete the 
Conservation Area designation process for the new 
Conservation Area. 

PH14/2019 11/02/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 
(Tourism, 
Economic 
Growth and 
Jobs) 

P
age 26



APPENDIX 5(a) 

CUSTOMER FIRST AND BENEFITS FEES AND CHARGES 
2019/2020 
 
The Leader of the Council agreed the recommendations 
as follows; 
 
To approve the fees and charges for Blue Badges and 
Money Management as outlined at Appendix A with 
effect from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, noting that 
no increase is proposed for Blue Badges or Money 
Management. 
 

To consider fees and charges proposals for 2019/20. 
The attached schedule as outlined at Appendix A for 
Blue Badges and Money Management. 

PH16/2019 20/02/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

P
age 27



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FEES AND CHARGES – REGISTRARS AND BEREAVEMENT 
SERVICES 2019/ 2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Third Sector Engagement and 
Leisure Services agreed the recommendations as 
follows; 
 

1. To approve the fees and charges for Registrars 
as outlined in Appendix A with effect from the 1 
April 2019 to 31 March 2020, excluding those set 
by the General Registrar’s Office. 

  
2. To note the fees and charges outlined in 

Appendix A set nationally by the General 
Registrar’s Office and included for completeness. 

 
3. To approve the fees and charges for 

Bereavement Services as outlined in Appendix B 
with effect from the 1April 2019 to 31 March 
2020. 

 
4. That the fees agreed in 1 and 3 above can be 

reduced from these rates on the publication of 
an officer decision of the Director for 
Governance and Partnerships, for one off events 
or a set period of time, following consultation 
with the Cabinet Member 

 

To consider and determine the fees and charges for 
the Registrars and Bereavement services for the 
financial year 2019/2020. 
 

PH19/2019 21/02/2019 Councillor 
Maria 
Kirkland, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Third Sector 
Engagement 
and Leisure 
Services 

P
age 28



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FEES AND CHARGES – GOVERNANCE AND 
PARTNERSHIPS 2019/2020 
 
The Leader of the Council agreed the recommendations 
as follows: 
 

1. To agree the fees and charges for Legal Services 
as set out in Appendix A for the period 1 April 
2019 to 31 March 2020. 

 
2. To note the statutory fee for sale of the electoral 

register as set out in paragraph 5.1. 
 

3. To note that the service no longer offers 
Certificates of Residency.  

 
4. To agree that the fees and charges for Legal 

Services can be reduced on the Published Officer 
decision of the Director of Governance and 
Partnerships, after consultation with the Leader 
of the Council. 

 

To consider and approve the fees and charges for 
Democratic Governance and Legal Services for the 
financial year 2019/2020. 

PH20/19 21/02/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

RIDEABILITY FEES AND CHARGES 2019/2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and 
Highways agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 
To agree the proposed fees and charges for Integrated 
Transport section, relating to the Rideability service, 
which are detailed in Appendix ‘A’ of the report, with 
effect from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 
 

The proposed fees and charges for the Integrated 
Transport section, relating to the Rideability service 
for 2019/20. 

PH21/2019 22/02/2019 Council Fred 
Jackson, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Environmental 
Services and 
Highways 

P
age 29



APPENDIX 5(a) 

TALBOT GATEWAY OFFICE ACCOMMODATION 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows: 
 

1. To authorise expenditure to the sum of up to 
£1,250,000 to carry out concept and initial 
designs for the most appropriate option to meet 
this future potential demand. 

 
2. To delegate authority to the Chief Executive to 

authorise expenditure and contracts to produce 
concept and initial designs within the financial 
limit agreed in 2.1 and the detailed estimates in 
Appendix 10d, to the Executive report. 

This report has been written to facilitate a potential 
specific demand for grade ‘A’ office accommodation 
in the Town Centre and to determine the additional 
resources required to carry out feasibility studies and 
initial designs to identify how the demand can be 
provided. 

EX23/2019 25/02/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 

TOWN CENTRE CAR PARKING STRATEGY 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows: 
 

1. To agree to the principal of providing the 
additional car parking spaces servicing the town 
centre to accommodate the demand identified 
in this report. 

 
2. To authorise expenditure to the sum of up to 

£16,000,000 to deliver the additional town 
centre parking provision identified in the report 
and in the indicative designs attached at 
Appendix 8c, to the Executive report. 

 
3. To delegate authority to the Chief Executive to 

authorise expenditure and contracts to deliver 
the most appropriate option within the financial 
limits in this report to the Executive. 

 

To summarise the current and future demand for car 
parking in the Town Centre, to determine the 
additional car parking requirement and identify how 
the demand can be addressed. 

EX21/2019 25/02/2019 Councillor 
Mark Smith, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Regeneration, 
Enterprise and 
Economic 
Development 

P
age 30



APPENDIX 5(a) 

BLACKPOOL CENTRAL 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows: 
 

1. To agree to delegate authority to the Chief 
Executive for approval of the final terms of the 
Land Sale arrangements, having undertaken all 
necessary financial and legal due diligence. 
 

2. To agree £1.9m funding, as outlined in Appendix 
9a, to the Executive report, to cover aspects 
identified to enable delivery of the scheme and 
protect the Council’s interests. 
 

3. To delegate authority to the Head of Legal to 
enter into any proposed legal agreements 
relating to the scheme. 
 

 

To inform of progress made with the developer in 
relation to the Blackpool Central scheme since 10 
December 2018, when the Executive gave approval to 
the developer’s outline masterplan for investment 
and regeneration of the site. 
 
To seek agreement to delegate authority to the Chief 
Executive in relation to financial and legal terms of the 
‘Land Sale’ arrangement based on the offer to be 
submitted to the Council and assessed by the 
Council’s property advisors, JLL, for the purposes of 
verifying best consideration for the site. In addition to 
the above, to delegate authority to the Head of Legal 
to enter into any proposed legal agreements relating 
to the scheme.  
 
To seek approval on the resources model shown in 
Appendix 9a, to the Executive report, which sets out 
the requirement for £1.9m to support and protect the 
Council’s interests in the delivery of the Blackpool 
Central scheme. Appendix 9a, to the Executive report, 
will remain exempt from publication given the 
commercial sensitivity of the information.  

 

EX22/2019 25/02/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 

P
age 31



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FUNDING FOR BLACKPOOL HOUSING COMPANY 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows: 
 

1. To authorise the Director of Resources to 
arrange a further committed loan facility for the 
benefit of the Company in the sum of 
£40.8million. This loan will allow the Company to 
deliver the plan approved in March 2017 and to 
cover the period to March 2025, enabling the 
assembly of a portfolio of circa 950 quality, 
affordable homes for rent in Inner Blackpool. 
 

2. To maintain a quarterly monitoring system and 
allow Public Works Loan Board resources to be 
transferred to the company over a period up to 
and including 31 March 2025. 
 

3. To remove the £10m per year drawdown limit 
imposed by the Executive approval for the 
original tranche of funding (EX32/2015). 

 

In July 2015, the Executive made a decision (EX32/2015) 
to provide an initial tranche of funding to the newly 
established Blackpool Housing Company - now more 
widely known as My Blackpool Home. This initial funding 
totalled £27.6m. At the current rate of delivery the 
initial tranche of funding is forecast to run out during 
the second half of 2019, and the Company requires a 
committed level of funding to build on its success to 
date and to continue to deliver on the objectives set for 
the Company by the Council. 
 
The primary focus of the Company is to gain a significant 
portfolio of property such that it has a critical mass and 
can therefore directly influence the standards of 
accommodation and management in the private rented 
sector. Consequently, the initial programme strategy 
was focussed on achieving 800+ units over a 10 year 
period from the company formation in August 2015. 
 
The Company has been a success and has had a 
demonstrably positive impact on property and people. It 
is now seeking to further this success by acquiring and 
converting/refurbishing a greater volume of problematic 
property, creating a larger portfolio of quality 
accommodation that will enable many more individuals 
and families to settle their lives in a secure home. 
 

EX20/2019 25/02/2019 Councillor Mrs 
Christine 
Wright, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Housing 

P
age 32



APPENDIX 5(a) 

SINGLE USE PLASTICS POLICY 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows: 
 

1. To adopt the Single Use Plastics policy attached 
at Appendix 5a, to the Executive report, and the 
Draft Action Plan attached at Appendix 5d, to 
the Executive report. 

 
2. To request the Chief Executive to sign the 

charter attached at Appendix 5b, to the 
Executive report, on behalf of the Council. 

 
3. To approve the Communications Programme 

attached at Appendix 5c, to the Executive 
report. 

 
4. That subject to 1 above, to recommend that the 

Council’s wholly owned companies adopt the 
policy and charter for Single Use Plastics. 

 

The purpose of the report is to seek approval for the 
adoption and implementation of a Single-Use Plastic 
Policy for the Council and recommend adoption to the 
Council’s wholly owned companies. 
 
The proposed policy outlines issues relating to Council 
use of non-recyclable and Single Use Plastics (SUP) 
(including wholly owned companies) and seeks to 
examine the potential to make key changes to processes 
and procedures, including throughout the Council’s 
supply chain, to reduce the use of Single Use Plastics 
where possible and implement more sustainable 
alternative options. 

EX18/2019 25/02/2019 Councillor 
Fred Jackson, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Environmental 
Services and 
Highways 

P
age 33



APPENDIX 5(a) 

COUNCIL TAX 2019/2020 
 
The Executive agreed the recommendations as follows: 
 

1. To consider all information received since the 
meeting of the Executive on 4 February 2019 
including the Final Settlement Funding 
Assessment announced on 29 January 2019 and 
to determine whether or not to confirm the 
Executive’s recommendation to Council 
regarding the General Fund Revenue Budget 
2019/20. 

 
2. To recommend to Council approval of a level of 

Blackpool Council’s Council Tax for the year 
2019/20 of £1,556.31 at valuation band D 
equivalent (an increase of 2.99%) 

 
3. To recommend to Council the level of net 

expenditure for the General Fund Revenue 
Budget 2019/20 of £124,073,000. 

 
4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner 

for Lancashire’s precept for the financial year 
2019/20 at valuation band D equivalent was 
agreed on the 13 February 2019 as £201.45, an 
increase of £24. 

 
5. To note that the Lancashire Combined Fire 

Authority met on the 18 February 2019 to set its 
precept for the financial year 2019/20. This was 
be reported verbally at this meeting. 

Proposals for Blackpool Council’s level of Council Tax for 
2019/20 and the General Fund Revenue Budget 
2019/20. 

EX15/2019 25/02/2019 Councillor 
Simon 
Blackburn, 
Leader of the 
Council 

P
age 34



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FEES AND CHARGES FOR LEISURE AND PARKS SERVICES 
2019/2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Third Sector Engagement and 
Leisure Services agreed the recommendations as 
follows; 
 

1. To agree the Community and Environmental 
Services proposed fees and charges for Leisure 
and Parks Services 2019/20, detailed in 
Appendix A to the report. 

 
2. To agree that the fees and charges above can be 

reduced on the published officer decision of the 
Director of Community and Environmental 
Services so that the service can utilise flexible 
pricing models and respond to demand.  

 

The proposed Community and Environmental Services 
fees and charges for Leisure and Parks Services for 
2019/20. 
 

PH23/2019 26/02/2019 Councillor 
Maria 
Kirkland, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Third Sector 
Engagement 
and Leisure 
Services 

FEES AND CHARGES FOR WASTE SERVICES 2019/2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and 
Highways agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 
To agree to the Community and Environmental Services 
proposed fees and charges for Waste Services for 
2019/20, detailed in Appendix A with effect from the 1 
April 2019 to the 31 March 2020.  
 

The proposed Community and Environmental Services 
fees and charges for Waste Services 2019/20. 
 

PH22/2019 26/02/2019 Council Fred 
Jackson, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Environmental 
Services and 
Highways 

P
age 35



APPENDIX 5(a) 

PUBLIC PROTECTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION FEES AND CHARGES 2019/2020 
 
The Deputy Leader agreed the recommendations as 
follows; 
 

1. To agree to the Community and Environmental 
Services proposed fees and charges for Public 
Protection with effect from 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020, which are detailed in Appendix A of 
the report. 

 
2. To agree Community and Environmental 

Services proposed fees and charges for 
Environmental Protection with effect from 1 
April 2019 to 31 March 2020, which are detailed 
in Appendix B of the report. 

 

The proposed Community and Environmental Services 
fees and charges for Public Protection and 
Environmental Protection for 2019/20. 

PH24/2019 28/02/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 

P
age 36



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FIXED PENALTY NOTICES FOR LITTERING, GRAFFITI, 
FLY-POSTING AND DISTRIBUTION OF PRINTED MATTER 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council agreed the 
recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To approve an increase to the Fixed Penalty 
Notice fee for Littering, Graffiti, Fly-Posting and 
distribution of Printed Matter to £150 with 
effect from 1 April 2019, with reduced early 
payment rate of £65 if paid within 10 days. 

 
2. To approve, in principal, the use of new powers 

to issue Fixed Penalty Notices at the same rate 
as outlined in 2.1 in relation to littering from 
motor vehicles under the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 and the Littering from 
Vehicles outside London (Keepers: Civil 
Penalties) Regulations 2018. 

 
3. To delegate to Director of Community and 

Environmental Services to authorise officers to 
issue Fixed Penalty Notices in relation to littering 
form motor vehicles under the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 and the Littering from 
Vehicles outside London (Keepers: Civil 
Penalties) Regulations 2018, subject to suitable 
training for officers and the continued use of the 
Community and Environmental Services 
Enforcement Policy. 

 

To consider the change in legislation which would 
allow the Council to set their own Fixed Penalty 
Notice charges for Littering, Graffiti, Fly-Posting and 
distribution of Printed Matter which came into force 
from 1 April 2018. This increases the maximum on-
the-spot fine local authorities can issue from £80 to 
£150. If the Council do not set their own level of fine 
then the default level of £100 would be required to be 
introduced.  
 
To also consider the use of new powers for littering 
from a motor vehicle that came into force from the 1 
April 2018. As per the Littering from Vehicles Outside 
London (Keepers: Civil Penalties) Regulations 2018. 

PH25/2019 28/02/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 

P
age 37



APPENDIX 5(a) 

FEES AND CHARGES 2019/202 – BUILDING CONTROL 
 
The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Economic Development agreed the recommendations 
as follows: 
 

1. To agree the revised fees payable as attached at 
Appendix A with effect from 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020. 

 
2. To agree the other fees and charges for Building 

Control as outlined at Appendix B with effect 
from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, as a nil 
increase. 

 

To consider the fees and charges for Building Control 
for 2019/2020. 
 

PH28/2019 04/03/2019 Councillor 
Mark Smith, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Regeneration, 
Enterprise and 
Economic 
Development 

P
age 38



APPENDIX 5(a) 

CAR PARKING FEES AND CHARGES 2019/2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Economic Development agreed the recommendations 
as follows: 
 

1. To agree the schedule of on and off street 
parking tariffs for each parking area as set out 
within the attached schedule at Appendix A, 
subject to consultation, with effect from the 1 
April 2019 to the 31 March 2020.  

 
2. To agree the schedule of the business and 

residential permit rates as set out within the 
attached schedule at Appendix A, subject to 
consultation, with effect from the 1 April 2019 to 
the 31 March 2020. 

 
3. To agree that the fees charged can be reduced 

from these rates, for specific events or fixed 
periods of time, on the published officer 
decision of the Director for Communications and 
Regeneration, following consultation with the 
relevant Cabinet Member. 

 

To agree the Fees and Charges which apply to on and 
off street parking, residential and business permits for 
the forthcoming financial year 2019/2020. 

PH29/2019 04/03/2019 Councillor 
Mark Smith, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Regeneration, 
Enterprise and 
Economic 
Development 

P
age 39



APPENDIX 5(a) 

ESTATES AND VALUATION FEES AND CHARGES 
2019/2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Economic Development agreed the recommendations 
as follows: 
 

1. To approve the fees and charges for Estates and 
Valuations as outlined at Appendix A with effect 
from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 

 
2. To agree that the fees charged can be reduced 

from these rates on the published Officer 
decision of the Director for Resources, following 
consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member. 

 

To consider fees and charges proposals for 2019/20 
for the Estates and Valuations service. 
 

PH30/2019 04/03/2019 Councillor 
Mark Smith, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Regeneration, 
Enterprise and 
Economic 
Development 

FEES AND CHARGES 2019/2020 - LICENSING SERVICE 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council agreed the 
recommendations as follows: 
 
To approve the attached fees and charges for the 
Licensing Service for 2019/20 with effect from 1 April 
2019 to 31 March 2020 as outlined in Appendix A. 
 

To consider the proposed fees and charges for the 
Licensing Service for 2019/20. 

PH33/2019 06/03/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 

P
age 40



APPENDIX 5(a) 

HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
FEES AND CHARGES 2019/2020 
 
The Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and 
Highways agreed the recommendations as follows; 
 

1. To agree to the proposed fees and charges for 
Highways and Traffic Management for 2019/20, 
which are detailed in Appendix ‘A’ with effect 
from the 1 April 2019 to the 31 March 2019.  

 
2. To agree that the fees charged can be varied by 

the Director of Community and Environmental 
Services, following consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Environmental Services and 
Highways, as a result of market changes. 

The proposed Community and Environmental Services 
fees and charges for Highways and Traffic 
Management for 2019/20. 
 

PH35/2019 08/03/2019 Councillor 
Fred Jackson, 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Environmental 
Services and 
Highways 

P
age 41



APPENDIX 5(a) 

LIBRARY FEES AND CHARGES 2019-2020 
 
The Deputy Leader agreed the recommendations as 
follows: 
 

1. To approve the amended library fees and 
charges for 2019-20 as set out in Appendix A 
with effect from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.  

 
2. To agree to implement a removal of library fines 

and have a historic fines amnesty.  
 

3. To note that this means that all books that go 
overdue from 1 April 2019 will no longer incur 
any overdue charges. For note, the service will 
still retain the ability to charge customers for 
any items that are lost. 

 
4. To agree that all fines accrued up to 31March 

2019 will be wiped, and any outstanding charges 
sitting on individual accounts (e.g. for items lost) 
will also be cleared – this is the historic, amnesty 
element of the proposal. 

To consider proposed changes to fees and charges for 
the Library Service in 2019-20.  
Alongside the general Library fees and charges, this 
includes a proposal to remove all fines for library 
customers from 1 April 2019, and to have an amnesty 
of historic fines in order to further remove barriers to 
accessing Library services. 

PH34/2019 08/03/2019 Councillor 
Gillian 
Campbell, 
Deputy Leader 
of the Council 

 

 

P
age 42



 
 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 

Date of Meeting:  19 June 2019 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 The Committee to consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan June 2019 to 
September 2019, within the remit of the Committee. 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the Leader of the Council and / or the 
relevant Cabinet Member in relation to items contained within the Forward Plan 
within the portfolios of the Leader of the Council and Deputy Leader of the Council. 
 

2.2 Members will have the opportunity to consider whether any of the items should be 
subjected to pre-decision scrutiny. In so doing, account should be taken of any 
requests or observations made by the relevant Cabinet Member. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To enable the opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny of the Forward Plan items. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool” 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 

The Forward Plan is prepared by the Leader of the Council to cover a period of four 
months and has effect from the first working day of any month. It is updated on a 
monthly basis and subsequent plans cover a period beginning with the first working 
day of the second month covered in the preceding plan. 

 
5.2 The Forward Plan contains matters which the Leader has reason to believe will be 

subject of a key decision to be taken either by the Executive, a Committee of the 
Executive, individual Cabinet Members, or Officers. 
 

5.3 Attached at Appendix 5(a) is a list of items contained in the current Forward Plan. 
Further details appertaining to each item is contained in the Forward Plan, which has 
been forwarded to all members separately. 
 

5.4 Witnesses/representatives 
 

5.4.1 The following Cabinet Members are responsible for the Forward Plan items in this 
report and have been invited to attend the meeting: 
 

 Councillor Simon Blackburn, Leader of the Council 

 Councillor Gillian Campbell, Deputy Leader of the Council (Place and Tourism) 

 Councillor Fred Jackson, Cabinet Member for Environmental, Transport and 
Climate Change 

 Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Job 
Creation 

 Councillor Maria Kirkland, Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and 
Leisure 

 Councillor Neal Brookes, Cabinet Member for Housing and Welfare Reform 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No 
 
 List of Appendices:  
 Appendix 6(a) Summary of items contained within Forward Plan 

June 2019 to September 2019. 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 
 

Page 44



 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



  APPENDIX 6(a) 

 
 

 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  -  SUMMARY OF KEY DECISIONS 

(JUNE 2019 TO SEPTEMBER 2019) 
* Denotes New Item 

 
Anticipated 
Date 
of Decision 

Matter for Decision 
Decision 
Reference 

Decision 
Taker 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member 

June 2019 Town Centre and Leisure 
Facilities Investment(this item 
to be considered in private by 
virtue of Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act 1972  
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person 
(including the authority 
holding that information) 

1/2018 Executive Cllr Smith 

June 2019 Applications for Business 
Loans above £500,000. (this 
item to be considered in 
private by virtue of Paragraph 
3 of Schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act 1972  
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person 
(including the authority 
holding that information) 

2/2018 Executive Cllr 
Blackburn 

June 2019 
 

To agree strategic acquisitions 
in or adjoining the Enterprise 
Zone (this item to be 
considered in private by virtue 
of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a 
of the Local Government Act 
1972  Information relating to 
the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person 
(including the authority 
holding that information) 

3/2018 Executive Cllr Smith 

June 2019 Lancashire and Blackpool Flood 
Risk Management Strategy 

11/2018 Executive Cllr 
Jackson 

Page 47



  APPENDIX 6(a) 

 
 

 

Anticipated 
Date 
of Decision 

Matter for Decision 
Decision 
Reference 

Decision 
Taker 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member 

June 2019 To consider and approve the 
provisional revenue outturn 
(compared with approved 
budget) and provisional capital 
outturn for the year ended 31 
March 2018. 

6/2019 Executive Cllr 
Blackburn 

June 2019 To consider and approve the 
treasury management report 
for the year ended 31 March 
2019. 

7/2019 Executive Cllr 
Blackburn 

 

Page 48



 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Steve Thompson, Director of Resources 

Date of Meeting: 19 June 2019 

 

PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2018/2019 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider the report of the Director of Resources on the Provisional Revenue 
Outturn for 2018/2019 compared with the approved budget and the capital 
expenditure in the year ended 31 March 2019 with sources of funding. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 

To consider and scrutinise the Provisional Revenue Outturn 2018/2019 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To bring the Provisional Revenue and Capital outturn figures to Members’ attention 
at the earliest opportunity in accordance with good financial practice and to seek 
approval of the treatment of carry forward under/overspendings as outlined in 
paragraph 3.2 of the Appendix 7(a), so that budget managers can then plan 
accordingly. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None, the report is a position statement as at 31 March 2019. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool”. 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 
5.0 Background Information 

 
5.1 
 

The report of the Director of Resources attached at Appendix 7(a) to this report 
outlines the Provisional Revenue Outturn for 2018/19 compared with the approved 
budget and the capital expenditure in the year ended 31 March 2019 with sources of 
funding. 
 

5.2 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

5.3 List of Appendices:  
  

Appendix 7(a)  – Report of the Director of Resources 
Appendix 7(b)– Outturn Summary 
Appendix 7(c) - Chief Executive Summary 
Appendix 7(d) - Governance and Partnership Services Summary 
Appendix 7(e) - Ward Budgets Summary 
Appendix 7(f)– Resources Summary 
Appendix 7(g) – Communications and Regeneration Summary 
Appendix 7(h) – Strategic Leisure Assets Summary 
Appendix 7(i) - Community and Environmental Services Summary 
Appendix 7(j) - Adult Services Summary 
Appendix 7(k) - Children’s Services Summary 
Appendix 7(l) - Public Health Summary 
Appendix 7(m) - Budgets Outside the Cash Limit Summary 
Appendix 7(n)- Capital Outturn Summary  
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 None. 
8.0 Equalities considerations: 

 
8.1 
 

None. 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

As outlined in the report. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

Page 50



10.1 Impact of financial performance on Council reserves and balances.  
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL 

REPORT 

of the 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

to the 

EXECUTIVE 

on 

10 JUNE 2019 

 

 
PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2018/19 

 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The purposes of this report are to show i) a comparison of General Fund 

Revenue Account expenditure in the year ended 31st March 2019 with the 
approved budget and ii) a statement of Capital Expenditure in the year ended 
31st March 2019 with sources of funding. The figures are provisional in that 
they are subject to external audit and any final accounting adjustments. The 
final figures will be incorporated within the Statement of Accounts for 
2018/19, which is the subject of a separate report to the Audit Committee on 
25th July 2019 in order to comply with the statutory deadline required by the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. 

 
 
2. Provisional Revenue Outturn 2018/19 
 
2.1 The Provisional Revenue Outturn for 2018/19 (before allowing for changes to 

working balances) is £127,495,000 compared with the approved budget of 
£128,518,000 – a net decrease of £1,023,000.  The summary figures are 
shown at Appendix 2b.     

 
2.2 The year-end variance position is summarised as follows:- 
 

Summary 2018/19 
Variance 

£000 

Directorates 1,823 
 

Budgets Outside the Cash Limit (1,198) 
 

Leisure Assets – actual (Appendix 2h) 1,827 
 

Leisure Assets – financed from Earmarked Reserves (Para 6.2) (1,827) 
Page 53



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

 

Contributions and Contingencies, Levies and Capital Charges (1,648) 
 

Total (1,023) 

 
2.3 The main reasons for this net service overspend / (underspends) are:- 
 

Service Reasons £000 

Children’s Services 
(Appendix 2k) 

Children’s Social Care overspent by £5.575m due to 
ongoing demand pressures relating to Looked After 
Children (LAC).  When budgets were set, LAC numbers 
were around 530, however numbers increased over the 
year and peaked at 572 in December. Whilst numbers did 
fall back to 565 by the end of March LAC totals were 
consistently above budgeted levels.  Furthermore, the 
breakdown of placements has contributed significantly to 
the overspend. Additional costs were incurred relating to 
children with complex needs being moved into more 
expensive placement categories, requiring additional 
support or being unable to step down as early as planned. 
£282k was also spent on the interim support following the 
Ofsted inspection in December 2018. 
The Education division also overspent by £371k. Special 
Educational Needs Transport pressures of £612K were 
offset by savings on direct payments and staffing 
underspends. 
Staffing, supplies and services underspends in the Early 
Help and Business Support and Resources divisions 
partially offset the pressure by £392k and £59k 
respectively. 

5,476 

Governance and 
Partnership Services 
(Appendix 2d) 

The main component of the Governance and Partnership 
Services overspend relates to a £308k pressure within Life 
Events and Customer Care due to a shortfall in income in 
relation to cremations and burials, additional Coroner 
costs and additional staff costs in Registrars covering long-
term sickness absence.  This was offset by surpluses in 
Democratic Governance and Corporate Legal Services due 
to income exceeding budget. 

238 

Communications and 
Regeneration 
(Appendix 2g) 

Arts and Heritage overspent by £81k in 2018/19 due to 
costs associated with the Grundy Art Gallery.  
Illuminations costs exceeded budget by £63k and Visit 
Blackpool faced additional event costs of £59k.  These 
overspends were offset by additional income in Planning 
and Print Services. 

138 

Public Health 
(Appendix 2l) 

The Public Health Directorate managed a grant of 
£18,428,000, for the financial year to March 2019 which 
was spent in full. Pressures within the CCTV department 
have been offset by savings against Community Safety, 
resulting in a net underspend of £4k.   

(4) 

Page 54



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

Chief Executive 
(Appendix 2c) 

 

The main component of this underspend relates to 
staffing savings achieved in Human Resources, 
Organisation and Workforce Development coupled with 
an underspend on the Chief Executive element of the 
budget. 

             (67) 

Adult Services 
(Appendix 2j) 

Adult Commissioning Placements overspent by £294k as a 
result of higher than expected Supported Living packages 
of care, offset by additional Fairer Charging Income.  The 
remaining underspends were mainly due to staffing 
vacancies within the service. 

(76) 

Ward Budgets 
(Appendix 2e) 

Scheme commitments of £80k are being carried forward 
into 2019/20. 

(80) 

Resources 
(Appendix 2f) 

Property Services overspent by £263k due to pressures 
across the division including reduced income generation 
from investment properties, mainly being the Marton 
Mere site and pressures within Building services due to 
renovations across Adult’s and Children’s buildings 
resulting in high maintenance costs. Risk Services 
underspent by £111k mainly due to EU Exit Funding 
received from MHCLG. The other Resources divisions 
underspent by £316k mainly due to staffing vacancies, 
supplies and services savings and increased income 
generation.  

(164) 

Community and 
Environmental 
Services 
(Appendix 2i) 

The main component of the variance on the Community 
and Environmental Services budget has arisen as a result 
of a technical accounting adjustment regarding debt 
payments made to Lancashire County Council to finance 
the Council’s waste disposal arrangements (formerly the 
Lancashire Waste PFI scheme).  Excluding this £3.6m 
variance, the Directorate has broken even for 2018/19 
with offsetting under and overspends across its 
constituent services.  Main variances include an overspend 
of £227k in Leisure and Catering, mainly the result of a 
shortfall in Leisure income, offset by savings in other 
divisions of the Directorate. 

(3,638) 

Total  1,823 

 
2.4 The financial outturn for budgets ‘outside the cash limit’ is detailed at Appendix 

2n and shows an aggregate underspending of £1,198,000. The main reasons for   
this are:- 

 

Service 
 

Reasons £000 

Parking Services 
 
 
 

An income shortfall of £612k has arisen in 
Parking Services, mainly due to “on-street” 
parking schemes not being feasible, a loss of 
parking spaces, prudential borrowing costs and  
reduced income from staff parking. 
 

612 

Page 55



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

Previous Years’ Pension 
Liability/Land Charges/ 
Council Tax and NNDR Cost 
of Collection/Corporate 
Subscriptions 

£20k reduction in Corporate Subscriptions 
taken out in 2018/19. Council Tax and NNDR 
Cost of Collection overspend of £1k is due to a 
reduction in costs recovered on Council Tax 
collection.  
Previous Years’ Pension Liability overspend of 
£5k is due to a reduction in contributions from 
schools. 
£20k underspend on Land Charges.  
 

(34) 

Concessionary Fares Concessionary fares were under budget due to 
a decrease in patronage by NoW cardholders 
as a result of the equalisation of the pension 
age.  
 

(162) 

Subsidiary Companies This underspend has resulted from a saving on 
Prudential borrowing costs as borrowings on 
historic capital schemes have been repaid. 
 

(240) 

Housing Benefits Net reduction in benefits payments due to 
Universal Credit and increase in recovery of 
overpayments. 
 

(309) 

Treasury Management Treasury Management has a favourable 
position due to cash flow management. 
 

(1,065) 

Total  (1,198) 

 
 
3. Treatment of Revenue Budget Variances 
 
3.1 As part of the year-end process an analysis of budget variances is undertaken 

in order to determine the treatment of under/overspendings on service 
budgets. The conventional Cash Limited Budgeting approach requires that:- 

 

 underspendings are carried forward in full and are then available to 
supplement the following year’s service budget; 

 

 overspendings are similarly carried forward but must as far as possible be 
recovered in the following financial year (where an extended period is 
required, this must be on the basis of a recovery plan with a timetable not 
exceeding 3 years and approved by the Executive); and 

 

 any windfall gains, as determined by the Director of Resources and arising 
from events outside the control of the service, are added to the Council’s 
general working balances. 

 
 
 
 

Page 56



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

3.2 However, having considered the Provisional Revenue Outturn 2018/19 in 
detail and the financial outlook and consulted Corporate Leadership Team 
colleagues, it is recommended that:- 

 

 the underspending of £80,000, in respect of the scheme commitments, on 
Ward Budgets is carried forward to 2019/20 in full; 

 

 the following under and overspendings are to be written off: 
 

Directorate £000 

Chief Executive (67) 

Governance & Partnership Services 238 

Resources (164) 

Communications & Regeneration 138 

Community & Environmental Services (3,638) 

Adult Services (76) 

Children’s Services 5,476 

Public Health (4) 

Total 1,903 

 
This will allow services to enter the new financial year in a balanced 
position and give directorates a realistic chance of meeting their budget 
savings for what will be the 9th consecutive year of material budget cuts. 

 
4.         Provisional Capital Outturn 2018/19 
 
4.1. This section sets out the level of expenditure incurred by the Council on its 

2018/19 Capital Programme. It provides a breakdown of expenditure by 
service in addition to providing a proposal on how the Capital Programme for 
2018/19 should be financed. 

 
4.2. The total capital expenditure for the year was £48,786,826. This is 

summarised on the following page with an analysis of spend by individual 
scheme available at Appendix 2n:- 

 
 

Directorate £ 

Communications and Regeneration 20,309,589 

Community and Environmental Services 12,274,165 

Chief Executive 9,523,858 

Adult Services 2,889,208 

Children’s Services 1,665,584 

Resources 1,655,996 

Governance and Regulatory Services 468,426 

Total 48,786,826 

  
4.3 CIPFA’s Prudential Code of Practice requires the Council to set a range of 

indicators each year, one of which is to separately account for non-Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) and Housing Revenue Account expenditure incurred 
in the financial year. Total capital spend in 2018/19 of £48,786,826 is split 

Page 57



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

between non-HRA of £39,466,668 and Housing Revenue Account of 
£9,320,158. 

 
4.4    The original Capital Programme for 2018/19 was set at £43.8m whilst the 

amount actually spent in-year was slightly more. This was due to new 
approvals given for schemes during the year. 

 
4.5      It is recommended that this expenditure is funded from the following sources:- 
                                                                                          

Source £ 

Prudential Borrowing  12,854,050 

Government and Other Grants 28,018,781 

Capital Receipts 1,772,599 

  

Other Sources:  

    - Revenue 8,877,469 

    - Job Centre Plus (106,920) 

    - United Utilities Contribution 79,292 

    - Lancashire County Council 161,055 

    - Hollinwood Homes (2,869,500) 

    

Total 48,786,826 

 
 The Council has maximised all capital resources available to it during 2018/19 

and arrangements have been made to ensure that funding for re-profiled 
schemes is carried forward into 2019/20.  

 
5.        Collection Rates 
 
5.1 Council Tax (CT)  

   
 At the end of month 12 the amount collected for Council Tax (excluding Police 

and Fire precepts) was £50.4m and the collection rate was 92.0%.  This 
compares to £46.4m and 91.3% at the same point in 2017/18.  The amount 
collected has actually risen by £4.0m which is mainly due to increases in both 
the Council Tax rate and base combined with the improved collection rate.  

   
In the light of the reductions in discount and the introduction of the Local 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme the target collection rate is 97.5% over a 4-year 
collection period as approved on 29 January 2018 as part of the setting of the 
Council Tax Base for 2018/19. 

 
 The level of Council Tax income is also affected by movements in the actual 

Council Tax Base compared to that used for the purposes of the 2018/19 
Budget.  The base is affected by the Council Tax Reduction Scheme which is 
effectively applied as a discount and therefore subsequently reduces the tax 
base. Movements in the Council Tax Reduction Scheme impact on the income 
due. 

 
 

Page 58



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

 As at 31 March 2019 the level of arrears has increased to £17.5m (compared 
to £16.8m in 2017/18) and the provision for bad debts has increased to £7.2m 
(compared to £6.5m in 2017/18). These reflect the current economic climate 
and the risks associated with the Council Tax Reduction Scheme.  If the actual 
collection rate is higher than 97.5% then the excess will be available to reduce 
the Council Tax in future years.  If it is lower than 97.5% then an increase in 
Council Tax will be required in future years to cover the shortfall.  This would 
be in addition to any changes arising from the actual collection rates in 
previous years. 

     
5.2 Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 

   
 The Council Tax Reduction Scheme was introduced on 1 April 2013.  The 

Scheme ensures that support to pensioners continues at existing levels.  
Working-age claimants are means-tested to establish entitlement and a 
percentage reduction (currently 27.11%) is applied at the end of the 
assessment to establish the level of support provided.  From 1 April 2017 the 
scheme was amended so that certain vulnerable groups would have the 
27.11% reduced to 13.56%.  The scheme was further amended from 1 April 
2018 to provide additional support for low income groups of claimants (in 
receipt of Income Support, Income-Based Jobseekers Allowance or Income 
Related Employment Support Allowance) by amending the percentage 
reduction applied to their award from 27.11% to 13.56%.  These have the 
effect of reducing the amount to be collected.  

    
 At the end of month 12 the amount collected (excluding Police and Fire 

precepts) in respect of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Council Tax for 
those who have to pay CTRS, either for the first time or in addition to a 
proportion of their Council Tax, was £2.38m and the collection rate was 
69.8%.  This compares to £2.31m and 61.3% at the same point in 2017/18. 

 
The underlying rate of collection of Council Tax Reduction Scheme was under 
greater pressure than 2017/18 due to accumulated arrears and limits on the 
amount that could be recovered from Attachment of Benefits. 
 

 5.3 National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR)  
    
 Prior to 1st April 2013 Business Rate income was collected by billing authorities 

on behalf of central government and then redistributed among all local 
authorities and police authorities as part of Formula Grant.  From 1st April 
2013 to 31st March 2019 the income relating to Blackpool is shared between 
central government (50%), the Council (49%) and the Fire Authority (1%). 
Consequential adjustments were made to the Formula Grant equivalent. 

 
 At the end of month 12 the amount collected for Business Rates was £47.7m 

and the collection rate was 96.2%.  This compares to £47.6m and 95.6% at the 
same point in 2017/18.   The increase of 0.6% compared to the previous year 
equates to £0.4m, though changes in both the Business Rate multiplier and 
base (due to the Revaluation in April 2017 and other movements) have made 
negative contributions of £0.3m, offset by a compensating increase to the 

Page 59



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

NDR Top-up amount.  The Council’s share of business rate yield continued at 
49%. 

  
 From April 2014 Business Ratepayers have been entitled to elect to pay by 12 

monthly instalments instead of over 10 months. This has allowed businesses 
more time to pay.  However, 778 business rate summonses were issued in the 
12 months to the end of March 2019. 

    
 The unaudited Business Rate cumulative deficit as at 31st March 2019 is 

£2.310m.  This is an improvement of £1.847m on the position at 31st March 
2018.   The Council's share is £1.132m (49%).  

  
 As at 31 March 2019 the level of arrears has reduced to £6.1m (compared to 

£6.2m in 2017/18) and the provision for bad debts has increased to £2.6m 
(compared to £2.5m in 2017/18). The level of write-offs and the provision for 
bad debts reflect the current economic climate and the volatility of these 
areas and justifies the level of earmarked reserves held by the authority.  The 
appeals provision has increased to £11.8m in 2018/19 (compared to £10.0m in 
2017/18) and is deemed necessary due to the volume of appeals still to be 
determined by the Valuation Office in respect of the 2005 and 2010 Valuation 
Lists and to provide for appeals following the 2017 Revaluation.  Following the 
introduction of the Check, Challenge and Appeal system by the Valuation 
Office no appeals have been received and the information available nationally 
is extremely limited.  In the absence of data from the 2017 List the amount set 
aside has been based on the allowance of 4.77% made to the adjustment to 
the NNDR Multiplier as this represents the government’s view as to the 
eventual impact of appeals on the 2017 List. 

 
6. Reserves and Provisions 
 
6.1 In accordance with Local Authority Accounting Panel (LAAP) Bulletin No. 99 

the Council’s reserves and provisions are continuously reviewed for relevance, 
appropriateness and materiality. The establishment, use and closure of 
reserves and provisions require the specific authorisation of the Director of 
Resources and auditable records are maintained to that effect.  Members are 
asked to note that the level of earmarked reserves has decreased from 
£36.8m to £35.4m during 2018/19 with those reserves summarised and 
shown in the table overleaf:- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

Earmarked Reserves 2018/19 2017/18 

 £000 £000 

Collection Fund Deficit Reserve (Council 
Tax and NNDR) 

12,575 13,459 

Public/Private Partnerships 4,833 6,064 

Treasury Management – Prudential 
borrowing 

465 2,251 

Transformation Reserve 517 425 

Museum Reserve 294 875 

Insurances 1,100 1,100 

Potential Pay Liabilities 1,172 488 

Other Reserves 14,468 12,157 

    

Total Earmarked Reserves 35,424 36,819 

 
6.2 The Strategic Leisure Assets cumulative overspend of £6,744,000 brought 

forward from 2017/18 is included within earmarked reserves along with the 
2018/19 in-year overspend of £1,827,000.  It is forecast that the portfolio will 
break-even, in-year, during 2021/22 when it will then start to repay the 
overspend. This is in line with the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
6.3. The year-end balances of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) are £5,705,000 

which is £623,000 less than originally forecast for 2018/19 due to rent income 
delays at Queens Park. 
 

6.4. Maintained schools’ balances (which lie outside the control of the Council) 
increased by £280,000 in 2018/19 to £2.4m. £422,000 is also held in an 
earmarked reserve in relation to overspent Dedicated Schools Grant. 

 

7. General Fund Working Balances 
 
7.1 The Council’s Revenue Budget for 2018/19 set a target level of General Fund 

working balances of around £6m. It is deemed appropriate to maintain this 
target level of £6m for working balances for the medium term. The level of 
working balances as at 31 March 2019 is higher at £7,057,000 and although 
higher than target it is deemed prudent to retain in view of the consequences 
of the recent Ofsted inspection. 

 
8. Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
8.1 The Provisional Outturn for 2018/19 shows the financial performance 

culminating with the Council’s General Fund working balances standing at 
£7,057,000. As has been reported it has been a difficult year with Children’s 
Services materially impacting upon the bottom line. 

 
 8.2 As the Council continues to manage the financial constraints placed upon it, 

the measures proposed within this report will reinstate some cushion for 
managing the risks that lie ahead in the next financial year, which is the last in 
the 4-year Settlement period contained within the current Medium Term 
Financial Sustainability Strategy. 

Page 61



APPENDIX 7(a) 

 

 
8.3 The Executive is asked to: 
 

 approve the provisional revenue outturn for 2018/19 and in so doing to 
note that the figures are subject to external audit and final accounting 
adjustments (ref. paragraph 2.1); 

 

 approve the recommendations regarding the treatment of specific service 
under / overspends as outlined (ref. paragraph 3.2); 

 

 approve the provisional capital outturn for 2018/19 and methods of 
scheme funding as outlined (ref. paragraphs 4.2 and 4.5); 

 

 note the Prudential Indicator (ref. paragraph 4.3); 
  

 note the levels of the earmarked reserves including those for the Housing 
Revenue Account and maintained schools (ref. paragraphs 6.1, 6.3 and 
6.4). 

 
Steve Thompson 
Director of Resources 
15 May 2019 

Page 62



Appendix 7(b)

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

ADJUSTED VARIATION

GENERAL FUND NET REQUIREMENTS CASH

LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

CASH LIMITED BOTTOM LINE BUDGETS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 591 524 (67)

GOVERNANCE AND PARTNERSHIP SERVICES 1,710 1,948 238

WARD BUDGETS 627 547 (80)

RESOURCES 4,896 4,732 (164)

COMMUNICATIONS AND REGENERATION 3,871 4,009 138

STRATEGIC LEISURE ASSETS 768 2,595 1,827

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 43,741 40,103 (3,638)

ADULT SERVICES 52,627 52,551 (76)

CHILDRENS SERVICES 38,662 44,138 5,476

PUBLIC HEALTH 111 107 (4)

BUDGETS OUTSIDE THE CASH LIMIT 13,779 12,581 (1,198)

CAPITAL CHARGES (30,302) (30,305) (3)

SUB TOTAL - NET COST OF SERVICES 131,081 133,530 2,449

CONTRIBUTIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

CONTRIBUTION TO OTHER RESERVES 466 749 283

TRANSFER TO RESERVES - SLA OVERSPEND -  (1,827) (1,827)

SCHOOL BALANCES -  (282) (282)

2017/18 UNDERSPEND FROM RESERVES (312) (312) -  

REVENUE CONSEQUENCES OF CAPITAL OUTLAY 100 -  (100)

CONTINGENCIES (3,270) (4,766) (1,496)

SUB TOTAL - CONTRIBUTIONS & CONTINGENCIES (3,016) (6,438) (3,422)

LEVIES

NORTH WEST REGIONAL FLOOD DEFENCE COMMITTEE 68 68 -  

APPRENTICESHIP LEVY 385 335 (50)

SUB TOTAL - LEVIES 453 403 (50)

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE TO BE MET FROM PUBLIC FUNDS 128,518 127,495 (1,023)

LESS: AMOUNT (TAKEN FROM)/ADDED TO WORKING BALANCES -  1,023 1,023

NET REQUIREMENT AFTER WORKING BALANCES 128,518 128,518 -  

Balance at 1st April 2018 4,034

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves 2,000

Movement in Balances 1,023

General Balances at 31 March 2019 7,057

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL

GENERAL FUND PROVISIONAL OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

TOTAL SUMMARY

ACTUALS

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7( c)

 

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 709                       677                       (32)
HR, ORGANISATION AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT (13) (43) (30)
CORPORATE DELIVERY UNIT 11                         9                            (2)
HOUSING (116) (119) (3)

NET COST OF SERVICES 591                       524                       (67)

Budget Holder: Mr Neil Jack- Chief Executive

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 4,137                    4,161                    24                         
PREMISES 99                         146                       47                         
TRANSPORT 19                         22                         3                            
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 405                       1,650                    1,245                    
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 318                       465                       147                       
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 65                         278                       213                       
SUPPORT SERVICES 1,133                    1,161                    28                         
CAPITAL CHARGES 16                         16                         -                             
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (87) -                             87                         
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6,105                    7,899                    1,794                    

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 243                       391                       (148)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 95                         1,585                    (1,490)
RECHARGES 4,215                    4,241                    (26)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 961                       1,158                    (197)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 5,514                    7,375                    (1,861)
NET EXPENDITURE 591                       524                       (67)

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 65



Appendix 7(d)

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE 2,077                         2,019                           (58)
CUSTOMER CARE & LIFE EVENTS (367) (59) 308
CORPORATE LEGAL SERVICES (102) (114) (12)
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE 102                            102                              -  

NET COST OF SERVICES 1,710                         1,948                          238                         

Budget Holder: Mr Mark Towers - Director of Governance and Partnership Services

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 3,680                         3,779                           99                           
PREMISES 215                            216                              1                             
TRANSPORT 70                              75                                5                             
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 634                            904                              270                         
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 161                            139                              (22)
TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                                 -                                   -                              
SUPPORT SERVICES 903                            924                              21                           
CAPITAL CHARGES 70                              70                                -                              
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (118) -                                   118                         
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 5,615                         6,107                          492                         

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 2,233                         2,142                           91                           
GOVERNMENT GRANTS -                                 30                                (30)
RECHARGES 999                            1,058                           (59)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 673                            929                              (256)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 3,905                         4,159                          (254)
NET EXPENDITURE 1,710                         1,948                          238                         

GOVERNANCE AND PARTNERSHIP SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 66



Appendix 7(e )

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES -                              -                              -                              
PREMISES -                              -                              -                              
TRANSPORT -                              -                              -                              
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 627                        552                        (75)
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS -                              -                              -                              
TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                              -                              -                              
SUPPORT SERVICES -                              -                              -                              
CAPITAL CHARGES -                              -                              -                              
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                              -                              -                              
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 627                        552                        (75)

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS -                              -                              -                              
GOVERNMENT GRANTS -                              -                              -                              
RECHARGES -                              -                              -                              
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS -                              5                             (5)
                    TOTAL  INCOME - 5 (5)
NET EXPENDITURE 627 547                        (80)

Budget Holder: Mrs Lorraine Hurst - Head of Democratic Governance

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

WARD BUDGETS

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 67



Appendix 7(f)

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

PROCUREMENT, ENERGY & PROJECTS 132                           45                           (87)
REVENUES & EXCHEQUER SERVICES 1,149                        1,098                      (51)
BENEFITS (820) (894) (74)
ICT SERVICES 163                           113                         (50)
CUSTOMER FIRST 15                             (23) (38)
ACCOUNTANCY 18                             2                             (16)
RISK SERVICES 7                               (104) (111)
PROPERTY SERVICES & INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 4,232                        4,495                      263                        

NET COST OF SERVICES 4,896                       4,732                     (164)

Budget Holder: Mr Steve Thompson - Director of Resources

Finance Manager: Mr Mark Golden

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 12,175                     12,158                   (17)
PREMISES 5,713                        6,582                      869                        
TRANSPORT 78                             84                           6                             
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 3,181                        4,489                      1,308                     
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 46                             146                         100                        
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 215                           216                         1                             
SUPPORT SERVICES 3,313                        3,254                      (59)
CAPITAL CHARGES 7,667                        7,795                      128                        
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (155) (28) 127                        
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 32,233                     34,696                   2,463                     

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 3,528                        4,436                      (908)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 525                           180                         345                        
RECHARGES 20,701                     20,815                   (114)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,583                        4,533                      (1,950)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 27,337                     29,964                   (2,627)
NET EXPENDITURE 4,896                       4,732                     (164)  

 

RESOURCES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 68



Appendix 7(g)

 

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 268                        349                        81                          
GROWING PLACES 408                        374                        (34)
VISITOR ECONOMY 3,195                     3,286                     91                          

NET COST OF SERVICES 3,871                     4,009                     138                        

Budget Holder: Mr A Cavill - Director of Communications and Regeneration

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 4,843                     5,933                     1,090                     
PREMISES 699                        1,042                     343                        
TRANSPORT 50                          101                        51                          
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 1,993                     5,775                     3,782                     
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS -                              1,971                     1,971                     
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 66                          105                        39                          
SUPPORT SERVICES 2,235                     2,296                     61                          
CAPITAL CHARGES 175                        816                        641                        
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (104) -                              104                        
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9,957                     18,039                  8,082                     

21,594                  
INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 1,123                     2,906                     (1,783)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 368                        4,563                     (4,195)
RECHARGES 3,105                     3,112                     (7)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 1,490                     3,449                     (1,959)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 6,086                     14,030                  (7,944)
NET EXPENDITURE 3,871                     4,009                     138                        

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND REGENERATION

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 69



Appendix 7(h)

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 121                         116                      (5)
PREMISES 579                         1,046                   467                    
TRANSPORT -                              -                           -                         
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 502                         1,718                   1,216                
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS -                              -                           -                         
TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                              50                        50                      
SUPPORT SERVICES 40                           41                        1                        
CAPITAL CHARGES 4,353                     4,320                   (33)
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                              -                           -                         
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 5,595                     7,291                   1,696                

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 2,854                     3,239                   (385)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS -                              -                           -                         
RECHARGES -                              -                           -                         
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 1,973                     1,457                   516                    
                    TOTAL  INCOME 4,827 4,696 131
NET EXPENDITURE 768 2,595                   1,827

Budget Holder: Mr L Frudd - Head of Strategic Leisure Assets

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher/Mrs K Whyatt

STRATEGIC LEISURE ASSETS

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 70



Appendix 7(i)

 

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

BUSINESS SERVICES 504 406                     (98)
LEISURE AND CATERING 2,549 2,772                  223                   
PUBLIC PROTECTION 511 487                     (24)
COASTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL PARTNERSHIPS 4,635 4,635                  -                        
HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SERVICES 16,226 16,184               (42)
STREET CLEANSING AND WASTE 18,673 15,001               (3,672)
INTEGRATED TRANSPORT 643 618                     (25)

NET COST OF SERVICES 43,741                  40,103               (3,638)

Budget Holder: Mr John Blackledge - Director of Community and Environmental Services

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 16,816 16,752               (64)
PREMISES 2,677 4,537                  1,860               
TRANSPORT 2,889 3,950                  1,061               
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 5,009 9,983                  4,974               
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 22,610 16,909               (5,701)
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 203 203                     -                        
SUPPORT SERVICES 5,108 5,205                  97                     
CAPITAL CHARGES 17,436 18,615               1,179               
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (96) -                          96                     
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 72,652                  76,154               3,502               

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 9,913                    9,774                  139                   
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 2,735                    2,802                  (67)
RECHARGES 10,547                  11,469               (922)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 5,716                    12,006               (6,290)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 28,911                  36,051               (7,140)
NET EXPENDITURE 43,741                  40,103               (3,638)

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL  SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 71



Appendix 7(j)

 

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

ADULT SOCIAL CARE 5,889                        5,598                     (291)
CARE & SUPPORT 4,756                        4,742                     (14)
COMMISSIONING & CONTRACTS 435                           391                         (44)
ADULTS COMMISSIONING PLACEMENTS 40,845                      41,139                   294                         
ADULTS SAFEGUARDING 702                           681                         (21)

NET COST OF SERVICES 52,627                      52,551                   (76)

Budget Holder: Karen Smith - Director of Adult Social Services

Finance Manager: Mr Mark Golden

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 18,932                      18,617                   (315)
PREMISES 51                              193                         142                         
TRANSPORT 784                           1,086                     302                         
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 1,804                        1,136                     (668)
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 51,221                      52,255                   1,034                     
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 4,460                        5,022                     562                         
SUPPORT SERVICES 2,570                        2,572                     2                             
CAPITAL CHARGES 396                           398                         2                             
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (597) -                              597                         
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 79,621                      81,279                   1,658                     

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 15,675                      16,665                   (990)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 227                           1,159                     (932)
RECHARGES 526                           347                         179                         
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 10,566                      10,557                   9                             
                    TOTAL  INCOME 26,994                      28,728                   (1,734)
NET EXPENDITURE 52,627                      52,551                   (76)

ADULT SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 72



Appendix 7(k)

 

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

LOCAL SCHOOLS BUDGET 20,201                   20,201                    -                                 
BUSINESS SUPPORT AND RESOURCES 9,888                     9,829                      (59)
EDUCATION 19,464                   20,235                    771                           
EARLY HELP FOR CHILDREN & FAMILIES 5,283                     4,892                      (391)
CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE 28,677                   33,852                    5,175                        
GRANTS (44,851) (44,871) (20)

NET COST OF SERVICES 38,662                   44,138                    5,476                        

Budget Holder: Diane Booth - Director of Children's Services

Finance Manager : Mr Mark Golden

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 42,413                   47,994                    5,581                        
PREMISES 377                         2,145                      1,768                        
TRANSPORT 2,980                     2,838                      (142)
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 16,437                   19,970                    3,533                        
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 21,508                   29,588                    8,080                        
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 7,844                     7,775                      (69)
SUPPORT SERVICES 3,484                     5,914                      2,430                        
CAPITAL CHARGES 2,018                     2,018                      -                                 
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (3,186) (392) 2,794                        
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 93,875                   117,850                 23,975                      

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 361                         1,663                      (1,302)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 49,224                   55,868                    (6,644)
RECHARGES 63                           6,377                      (6,314)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 5,565                     9,804                      (4,239)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 55,213                   73,712                    (18,499)
NET EXPENDITURE 38,662                   44,138                    5,476                        

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 73



Appendix 7(l)

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIANCE

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

PUBLIC HEALTH 23                             23                         -                             
CCTV AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 88                             84                         (4)

NET COST OF SERVICES 111                           107                       (4)

Budget Holder: Dr Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health

Finance Manager: Mark Golden

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIANCE

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 1,218                        1,254                    36                          
PREMISES 7                                12                         5                            
TRANSPORT 15                             44                         29                          
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 33                             290                       257                       
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 17,838                     20,367                 2,529                    
TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                                 -                             -                             
SUPPORT SERVICES 296                           832                       536                       
CAPITAL CHARGES -                                 -                             -                             
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                                 -                             -                             
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 19,407                     22,799                 3,392                    

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS -                                 -                             -                             
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 18,428                     21,070                 (2,642)
RECHARGES 50                             385                       (335)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 818                           1,237                    (419)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 19,296                     22,692                 (3,396)
NET EXPENDITURE 111                           107                       (4)

PUBLIC HEALTH

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 74



Appendix 7(m)

 

 

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 10,133                     9,068                       (1,065)
PARKING SERVICES (4,657) (4,045) 612                          
CORPORATE SUBSCRIPTIONS 152                          132                          (20)
HOUSING BENEFITS 1,384                       1,075                       (309)
COUNCIL TAX AND NNDR COST OF COLLECTION 1,103                       1,104                       1                               
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (976) (1,216) (240)
LAND CHARGES (51) (71) (20)
CONCESSIONARY FARES 4,266                       4,104                       (162)
EMPLOYERS PREVIOUS YEARS PENSION LIABILITY 2,890                       2,895                       5                               
NEW HOMES BONUS (465) (465) -                                

NET COST OF SERVICES 13,779                     12,581                     (1,198)

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 3,207                       3,266                       59                             
PREMISES 1,252                       1,375                       123                          
TRANSPORT 21                             46                             25                             
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 4,804                       8,268                       3,464                       
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 52                             113                          61                             
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 75,960                     73,309                     (2,651)
SUPPORT SERVICES 4,068                       4,537                       469                          
CAPITAL CHARGES 16,221                     12,677                     (3,544)
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                                -                                -                                
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 105,585                   103,591                   (1,994)

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 7,959                       6,915                       1,044                       
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 76,283                     75,369                     914                          
RECHARGES 3,333                       3,394                       (61)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 4,231                       5,332                       (1,101)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 91,806                     91,010                     796                          
NET EXPENDITURE 13,779                     12,581                     (1,198)

BUDGETS OUTSIDE THE CASH LIMIT

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019

SUMMARY

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7(n)

Expenditure for Capital Purposes PAYMENTS CAPITAL GOVERNMENT OTHER PRUDENTIAL TOTAL

IN 2018/19 RECEIPTS AND OTHER SOURCES BORROWING

2018/19 GRANTS
£ £ £ £ £ £

Director Responsible for Resources

Property Management
Office Redevelopment 1 Clifton Street 1,608 -                            1,608 -                                            -                               1,608
Remodelling CLC Grange Park 125,809 112,701 -                                            -                                            13,108 125,809
Municipal Buildings Works (14,120) -                            -                                            (106,920) 92,800 (14,120)

Total Property Management 113,297 112,701 1,608 (106,920) 105,908 113,297

Other Schemes
Capital Repairs and Maintenance 2018/19 304,448 129,671 -                                            174,777 -                               304,448
ICT Refresh 2018/19 572,399 -                            -                                            572,399 -                               572,399
Vehicle Mitigation 149,999 -                            149,999 -                                            -                               149,999
Shared Office Space 2nd Floor 44,663 -                            44,663 -                                            -                               44,663
Local Full Fibre Network 67,629 -                            67,629 -                                            -                               67,629
Ground Floor Blackpool College 137,909 -                            137,909 -                                            -                               137,909
Slater Gordon 1st Floor 265,652 -                            -                                            -                                            265,652 265,652

Total Other Schemes 1,542,699 129,671 400,200 747,176 265,652 1,542,699

TOTAL Resources 1,655,996 242,372 401,808 640,256 371,560 1,655,996

Director Responsible for Children's Services

Primary Schools
Bispham Endowed 19,535 -                            19,535 -                                            -                               19,535
Boundary 43,668 -                            43,668 -                                            -                               43,668
Claremont 6,485 -                            6,485 -                                            -                               6,485
Kincraig 3,965 -                            3,965 -                                            -                               3,965
St Nicholas Previous Scheme 38,000 -                            38,000 -                                            -                               38,000
Moor Park Lighting 154,116 -                            154,116 -                                            -                               154,116
Stanley 12,716 -                            12,716 -                                            -                               12,716

Secondary Schemes
Bispham High (93,714) -                            (94,193) 479 -                               (93,714)

Other Schemes
Highfurlong Special 18,747 -                            18,747 -                                            -                               18,747
Park 201,172 -                            201,172 -                                            -                               201,172
Woodlands 873,390 -                            873,390 -                                            -                               873,390
Pegasus 147,601 -                            147,601 -                                            -                               147,601
Athena 29,271 -                            29,271 -                                            -                               29,271
Langdale 112,974 -                            112,974 -                                            -                               112,974
Vehicle Acquisition 97,658 -                            97,658 -                                            -                               97,658

TOTAL Children's Services 1,665,584 -                       1,665,105 479 -                         1,665,584

PROVISIONAL CAPITAL OUTTURN STATEMENT 2018/19

P
age 77



Appendix 7(n)

Expenditure for Capital Purposes PAYMENTS CAPITAL GOVERNMENT OTHER PRUDENTIAL TOTAL

IN 2018/19 RECEIPTS AND OTHER SOURCES BORROWING

2018/19 GRANTS
£ £ £ £ £ £

PROVISIONAL CAPITAL OUTTURN STATEMENT 2018/19

Director Responsible for Adult Services

I-Switch Scheme 243,426 -                            243,426 -                                            -                               243,426
Adult Services Schemes 731,546 -                            731,546 -                                            -                               731,546
Crematorium Café 64,281 -                            64,281 -                                            -                               64,281
Regeneration - Renovation Grant on Disabled Facilities 1,767,634 -                            1,767,634 -                                            -                               1,767,634
Care & Repair 2,615 2,615 -                                            -                                            -                               2,615
Winter Warmth 79,706 -                            79,706 -                                            -                               79,706

TOTAL Adult Services 2,889,208 2,615 2,886,593 -                                    -                         2,889,208

Director Responsible for Community and Environmental Services

Other Schemes
Vehicle/Plant Renewals 694,245 -                            -                                            694,245 -                               694,245
Anchorsholme Seawall Scheme 312,246 -                            312,246 -                                            -                               312,246
Sand Dunes 79,786 -                            79,786 -                                            -                               79,786
Stanley Park All Weather Pitch 349,083 -                            233,597 15,486 100,000 349,083
Anchorsholme Park Playground 79,292 -                            -                                            79,292 -                               79,292
Layton Depot Refuse Works 414,639 -                            -                                            -                                            414,639 414,639

Total Other schemes 1,929,291 -                            625,629 789,023 514,639 1,929,291

Transport
Bridges 1,445,067 -                            1,445,067 -                                            -                               1,445,067
Blackpool/Fleetwood Tramway Upgrade 8,750,801 -                            6,885,398 161,055 1,704,348 8,750,801
Yeadon Way 149,006 -                            149,006 -                                            -                               149,006

Total Transport Schemes 10,344,874 -                            8,479,471 161,055 1,704,348 10,344,874

TOTAL Community and Environmental Services 12,274,165 -                       9,105,100 950,078 2,218,987 12,274,165

P
age 78



Appendix 7(n)

Expenditure for Capital Purposes PAYMENTS CAPITAL GOVERNMENT OTHER PRUDENTIAL TOTAL

IN 2018/19 RECEIPTS AND OTHER SOURCES BORROWING

2018/19 GRANTS
£ £ £ £ £ £

PROVISIONAL CAPITAL OUTTURN STATEMENT 2018/19

Director Responsible for Communications and Regeneration Services

Transport
Local Transport Plan - Maintenance 1,203,385 -                            1,203,385 -                                            -                               1,203,385
Local Transport Plan - Parking Management (482) -                            (482) -                                            -                               (482)
Local Transport Plan - Public Transport Schemes 628,233 -                            574,379 53,854 -                               628,233
Local Transport Plan - Traffic Management and Accessibility 590,041 -                            590,041 -                                            -                               590,041
Local Transport Plan - Walking and Cycling 71,639 -                            71,639 -                                            -                               71,639
Quality Corridor 2,410,581 -                            2,410,581 -                                            -                               2,410,581

Total Transport Schemes 4,903,397                   -                            4,849,543                               53,854                                     -                               4,903,397                    

Other Schemes
Leisure Assets 1,954,546 -                            936,290 -                                            1,018,256 1,954,546
Land Release Schemes 83,245 -                            83,245 -                                            -                               83,245
King Edward Hotel 40,561 -                            -                                            -                                            40,561 40,561
Airport 53,221 -                            -                                            -                                            53,221 53,221
Sports Village 1,200 -                            -                                            -                                            1,200 1,200
Marketing and Public Relations 61,933 -                            -                                            -                                            61,933 61,933
Direct Development 17,168 -                            -                                            -                                            17,168 17,168
Highways & Enabling Works - In Enterprise Zone 37,470 -                            -                                            -                                            37,470 37,470
Highways & Enabling Works - Outside Enterprise Zone 15,500 -                            -                                            -                                            15,500 15,500
Delivery Management 205,905 -                            -                                            -                                            205,905 205,905
Town Centre Investment 3,000,565 -                            -                                            -                                            3,000,565 3,000,565
Cookson Street 3 50,470 -                            -                                            -                                            50,470 50,470
King Street 5 - 7 159,499 -                            -                                            -                                            159,499 159,499
Town Centre Car Park Strategy 62,177 -                            -                                            -                                            62,177 62,177
Conference Centre 9,210,485 -                            6,528,511 -                                            2,681,974 9,210,485
Acquisition 51 King Street 16 -                            16 -                                            -                               16
Central Business District Phase 2 452,231 -                            -                                            -                                            452,231 452,231

Total Other Schemes 15,406,192                 -                            7,548,062                               -                                            7,858,130                  15,406,192                  

TOTAL Communications and Regeneration Services 20,309,589 -                       12,397,605 53,854 7,858,130 20,309,589

Director Responsible for Governance and Regulatory Services

Carleton Crematorium Works 2018-20 468,426 -                            -                                            -                                            468,426 468,426

TOTAL Governance & Regulatory Services 468,426 -                       -                                    -                                    468,426 468,426

P
age 79



Appendix 7(n)

Expenditure for Capital Purposes PAYMENTS CAPITAL GOVERNMENT OTHER PRUDENTIAL TOTAL

IN 2018/19 RECEIPTS AND OTHER SOURCES BORROWING

2018/19 GRANTS
£ £ £ £ £ £

PROVISIONAL CAPITAL OUTTURN STATEMENT 2018/19

Chief Executive

HRA
Troutbeck Redevelopment 601,698 -                            -                                            601,698 -                               601,698
Hoyle House Redevelopment 1,285,514 -                            -                                            1,285,514 -                               1,285,514
Grange Park Development 3,000 -                            -                                            3,000 -                               3,000
HRA Adaptation Work 323,996 -                            -                                            323,996 -                               323,996
Queens Park Phase 2 3,422,128 -                            1,562,570 1,859,558 -                               3,422,128
Work towards Decent Homes Standard 3,683,822 391,359 -                                            3,292,463 -                               3,683,822

Total HRA 9,320,158 391,359 1,562,570 7,366,229 -                               9,320,158

Other Schemes
Foxhall Village 203,700 1,136,253 -                                            (2,869,500) 1,936,947 203,700

TOTAL Chief Executive 9,523,858 1,527,612 1,562,570 4,496,729 1,936,947 9,523,858

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 48,786,826 1,772,599 28,018,781 6,141,396 12,854,050 48,786,826

 REVENUE £

 Revenue 8,823,136

Rent 479

Job Centre Plus (106,920) 

Hollinwood FDC (2,869,500) 

United Utilities 79,292

Lancashire County Council 161,055

Ward Funding 53,854                                                

6,141,396

P
age 80



 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Steve Thompson, Director of Resources 

Date of Meeting: 19 June 2019 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019  
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider the Treasury Management Outturn Report for the year ended 31 March 
2019. 
 

2.0 Recommendation: 
 

2.1 To note the report concerning Treasury Management activities for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2019. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation: 

3.1 
 

At its meeting on the 28 February 2014 the Council agreed to adopt the CIPFA  
Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral 
Guidance Notes (2011 Edition). A feature of the Code is that periodic reports on 
Treasury Management activities are submitted to the Executive and the attached 
report relates to Treasury Management activities for the 2018/2019 financial year. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

 
 No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

 
Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered:                                                                                    
 

 None 
 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 

across Blackpool” 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



  
5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
5.2 

Background Information 
 
One of the requirements of CIPFA’s (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) 2011 Prudential Code and Treasury Management Codes of Practice is 
that periodic reports on the Council’s treasury management activities are submitted 
to the Executive. This annual report on performance is for the 2018/2019 financial 
year. 
 
The Council manages its cashflow and long-term financing of capital investments in 
accordance with its annual Treasury Management Strategy. The 2018/19 Strategy 
was approved by the Council on 27 February 2019. 
 

5.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

5.4 List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 8(a) - Treasury Management Outturn Report 2018/19 

 

 Appendix 8(b) – External debt fallout chart, maturity values as at 31 March 2019 
Appendix 8(c) – Official Bank (Base) Rate movements September 2009 to March 2019 
Appendix 8(d) – Treasury Management Summary Statistics for the year 2018/2019 
Appendix 8(e) – Comparison of Budget to Actuals 2018/2019 
Appendix 8(f) – Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 2018/2019 
 

6.0 
 
6.1 

Legal considerations: 
 
None. 
 

7.0 
 
7.1 

Human Resources considerations: 
 
None 
 

8.0 
 
8.1 

Equalities considerations: 
 
None. 

 
9.0 Financial considerations: 

 
9.1 
 

Please see the Report at Appendix 8(a) to 8(f). 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 
 

Liquidity Risk (accessibility and/or running out of cash) 
 

Page 82



10.2 
 
10.3 
 
10.4 

Market Risk (Movements in interest rates – yield) 
 
Credit Risk (investment counterparties might default – security) 
 
Operational Risk (adequacy of internal processes) 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

With the Council’s Treasury Management Panel. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 
 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 8(a) 

 

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL 

REPORT 

of the 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

to the 

EXECUTIVE 

on 

 10 June 2019 

 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 
 

 
                             
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

One of the requirements of CIPFA’s (Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy) 
2017 Prudential Code and Treasury Management Codes of Practice is that periodic reports 
on the Council’s treasury management activities are submitted to the Executive. This annual 
report on performance is for the 2018/19 financial year. 
 
The Council manages its cashflow and long-term financing of capital investments in 
accordance with its annual Treasury Management Strategy. The 2018/19 Strategy was 
approved by the Council on 28 February 2018 and its objectives are as follows: 
 

 to set the framework for managing the Council’s investments and cashflows and 
controlling its banking, money market and capital market transactions 

 

 to plan and secure appropriate borrowing in order to finance the Capital Programme for 
2018/19 and the next two years, at the lowest cost to the Council 

 

 to achieve the best rates of return from the investment of temporary surplus cash 
balances commensurate with risk, subject to the overriding principle of maintaining an 
acceptable level of security 

 

 to control effectively the risks associated with these transactions 
 

 to comply with appropriate codes and regulations including the International Financial 
Reporting Standards as they apply to Treasury Management. 

 
 

Page 85



  Appendix 8(a) 

 

In delivering the above objectives the Council will: 
 

 decide its own borrowing limits taking into account its financial situation, long-term 
plans and in particular what it thinks is affordable now and sustainable in the future  

 

 monitor these limits using performance measures called Prudential indicators. All local 
authorities must use the same system of performance measurement and risk control. 
The borrowing limits have been set in accordance with the Council’s Medium-term 
Financial Plan. 

 
2. BORROWING TRANSACTIONS 2018/19 
 
2.1 Loans Raised 
 

The Council’s total borrowing powers at 1 April 2018 (the Authorised Limit) stood at £433m. 
New long-term borrowing of £8m was taken in August 2018 at a rate of 2.21% and will be 
repaid when it matures in August 2028.   
 
The 2018/19 borrowing requirement for the remainder of the capital programme was 
deferred until such time that interest rates are judged to be favourable to the Council. This 
action reduces the Council’s exposure to counterparty risk whilst enabling savings to be 
made in long-term borrowing costs. The Treasury Management Panel’s view is that it will 
continue to monitor interest rates and borrow only when market conditions are favourable. 

 
Temporary borrowing has been required to deal with the normal peaks and troughs of the 
cashflow, including creditor payments, grant receipts, etc. It has also been required to cover 
troughs in cashflow due to the delay in taking new long-term borrowing. 
 

2.2 Loans Repaid 
 
In addition to the temporary borrowing referred to in 2.1 above, a total of £3.9m of long-
term borrowing was repaid, of which £0.9m was repaid in two equal instalments in April and 
October 2018 and a further £3m market loan was repaid to KA Finanz AG in December 2018. 
 

2.3 Loans Refinanced 
 
From time to time, opportunities arise to repay existing loans and replace them with lower 
cost alternative loans. Where this arises, savings in annual interest costs can be achieved 
which keep the Council’s overall borrowing costs as low as possible. 
 
As referred to above in 2.2, a £3m market loan was repaid early in December 2018 and was 
financed by additional temporary borrowing. This will enable the Treasury Management 
Panel to manage the borrowing more efficiently and effectively within its existing loan 
portfolio. 

 
 
 

Page 86



  Appendix 8(a) 

 

2.4 Summary 
 
The Council’s overall pooled borrowing rate on its long-term debt decreased from 4.88% in 
2017/18 to 4.60% in 2018/19. This change occurred as a result of the movement in loans 
referred to in 2.1 and 2.2 above. 
 
When the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy buy-out took place in March 2012, the Council 
adopted a two pool approach to managing its long-term loans with separate loan pools for 
the General Fund (GF) and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). At that time the interest 
rate on both pools was approximately 4.9%. Since that date the maturity of loans from both 
pools has resulted in a change in interest rates such that the overall pooled borrowing rate 
is made up the GF average pooled rate (4.51%) and the HRA average pooled rate (5.67%). 
 
With the abolition of the debt cap on the HRA in October 2018, further borrowing for social 
housing developments may be considered in the future. 
 
Temporary borrowing has been required at certain times during the year in order to manage 
the peaks and troughs in cashflows. The Council’s borrowing activities for the 2018/19 
financial year are summarised below: 
 

 Loan financing 
at 1 Apr 2018  

Additions (Reductions)  
 

Loan financing 
at 31 Mar 2019 

 £M £M £M £M 
     

PWLB 54.2 8.0 (0.9) 61.3 
Market Loans 38.0 - (3.0) 35.0 
Temporary Loans 
 

152.0 272.1 (271.1) 153.0 

TOTAL Loans 244.2      280.1 (275.0) 249.3 

Temporary Investment  (9.1)  (274.2) 275.5  (7.8) 

NET External Loans 
 

235.1 5.9 0.5 241.5 

 
The revised maturity profile for the total external long-term loans outstanding as at 31st 
March 2019 is shown in Annex 1 of this report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



  Appendix 8(a) 

 

3. INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS 2018/19 
 
3.1 Overview 

 
The Bank of England Official Bank Rate - the ‘Base Rate’, i.e. the general level to which all 
short-term interest rates are related started the year at 0.5%. On the 2nd August the Bank of 
England increased the rate to 0.75% and the rate remained at this level for the rest of the 
year.  
 
Annex 2 shows this interest rate graphically from 1st September 2008 to 31st March 2019. 
 

3.2 Receipts and Payments during the Year 
 

Annex 3 of this Report summarises the Council’s cashflows during the year, short-term 
interest receivable and payable, year-end loans outstanding and investment balances. 

 
3.3 Investment Earnings  
 

Interest which has been earned from temporary investments is included in Annex 3, 
together with a comparison with the budgeted income for the financial year. Actual 
investment earnings, included within the short-term net receivable/payable figure, are £52k 
and these are referred to in Annex 4 within the note on higher cash balances. 
 

3.4 Approved Institutions for Investments 
  

The Treasury Management Panel will continue to manage the Council’s treasury and 
investment affairs in a cautious and prudent manner taking account of changes in the 
economic climate. The Council’s Treasury Management Policy restricts investments to a list 
of approved institutions.  Each institution has its own maximum investment limit and 
timeframe and the security of funds is the overriding factor. 
 
The list comprises UK-registered banks along with their subsidiaries, the Nationwide and 
Coventry Building Societies, upper tier local authorities and certain other public sector 
bodies plus short-term gilts and UK treasury bills. The list continues to be reviewed regularly 
in the light of changes in credit ratings and market intelligence. 
 

4. REVENUE OUTTURN 2018/19 
 

The Treasury Management revenue account for 2018/19 had net expenditure of £9,068k, an 
improvement of £1,065k over the budget of £10,133k. 
 
A comparison of the Treasury Management revenue account with the budget for 2018/19 is 
set out in Annex 4.   
 
The debt servicing costs for 2018/19 decreased due to the use of cheaper temporary loans, 
the deferral of any new long-term borrowing and the recharge of interest on Business 
Loans.  

Page 88



  Appendix 8(a) 

 

 
Low levels of interest available on temporary cash balances coupled with fewer 
opportunities to restructure the long-term loan portfolio mean that further savings cannot 
be guaranteed in future years. 

 
 

5. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
 
The Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2018/19 are set out within Annex 5 to this Report. 
 
 

6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Executive is asked to note the report on treasury management activities for the 
financial year ending 31 March 2019. 
 
 
 

 
Steve Thompson 

Director of Resources 

15 May 2019 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8(b)

 

  -

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

D
e
b
t 
m

a
tu

ri
n

g
 b

y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 £
'0

0
0
s

Financial year

External debt fallout chart, maturity values, as at 31st March 2019

PWLB debt £'000s Market loans including LOBOs £'000s

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8(c )

 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
B

a
n
k
 (

B
a
s
e
) 

R
a
te

Official Bank (Base) Rate movements September 2008 - March 2019

P
age 93



 

P
age 94



Appendix 8(d)

SHORT TERM INTEREST CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR
NET (RECEIVABLE)/PAYABLE

RECEIPTS £'000s

£'000s

Loans & Investments, total movements

Budgeted for year 1,342 (The transaction totals, NOT the balance) (A) 555,500

Actual for year 959 * Council Tax & NNDR 91,521

* (includes £55k interest receivable)

Government Grants/Rate Support Grant 156,706

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS MADE Housing Benefit & Subsidy 77,108

Call Accounts & Money Market

Other income, VAT reclaimed 143,104

Number in the year 150 TOTAL OF ALL AMOUNTS RECEIVED

INTO THE BANK ACCOUNTS 1,023,939

Total value of those transactions in and out £274m

Average interest rate earned 0.52% PAYMENTS £'000s

Loans & Investments, total movements

(The transaction totals, NOT the balance) (B) 549,173

SHORT TERM LOANS MADE
General Creditors 310,669

Number in year 57 Salaries & Wages 93,434

Total value of those transactions in and out £272m Housing Benefits 62,101

Average interest rate paid 0.95% Precepts, Police & Fire 9,461

TOTAL OF ALL AMOUNTS PAID

OUT OF THE BANK ACCOUNTS 1,024,838

The difference between total amounts received and paid equals

YEAR END LOANS OUTSTANDING the movement on the current account balances during the year and

01/04/18 31/03/19 not solely the movement on Loan and Investment balances 

£'000s SOURCE £'000s which is shown in the table below.

RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS WITH
54,225 Public Works Loan Board 61,302 THE  LOAN & INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS   £'000s

Receipts (A) 555,500

38,000 Market Loans 35,000 Payments (B) (549,173)

Net (payment)/receipt into current a/cs 6,327

152,000 Temporary Loans 153,000

244,225 TOTAL LOANS OUTSTANDING 249,302 Total loans at end of year 249,302

Total loans at start of year (244,225)

  Net loans taken out 5,077

YEAR END INVESTMENT BALANCES
01/04/18 31/03/19 Investments at end of year (7,800)

£'000s CHANGE £'000s Investments at start of year 9,050

4,050 Investments (Call accounts) 7,800   Net decrease in investments 1,250

5,000 Investments (Money Market)    -

Net (payment)/receipt into current a/cs 6,327

9,050 Total 7,800

TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT

SUMMARY STATISTICS FOR THE YEAR 2018/19

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 8(e) 

 
Comparison of Budget to Actuals 2018/19 
 
The annual budget monitoring information for 2018/19 shows a (£1,065k) full-year 
(favourable) variance on the £10,133k Treasury Management Budget. 
 
The components of this variance are as follows:  

 

 
 

2018/19 Full 
Year Variance 

(Fav)/Adv 
£’000s 

 
The use of temporary borrowing and internal financing have enabled 
borrowing to be delayed, thus achieving savings against interest 
payable 
 

 
(1,788) 

 
Shortfall of Interest Received on Business Loans Fund 
 

942 

 
Higher cash balances than planned have been maintained during 
2018/19 and this has contributed to an increase in the level of 
temporary investment income (Actual £55k minus Budget £3k) 
 

 
 

(52) 

 
Other miscellaneous items including recharges, brokerage and SORP 
premia costs 
 

 
(167) 

 
2018/19 full-year (favourable)/adverse position 
 

     (1,065) 

 
 

 
 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8(f)

'Treasury Management' Prudential Indicators 2018/19

Prudential Indicator 2018/19 Full-year planned Prudential Indicator 2018/19 Actual Prudential Indicator

(Paragraph references are to the Annual Report to Council)

Prudential Indicators: the actual position 2018/19

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Prudential Indicators for Treasury Management 

(B, 8.8) Gross compared to CFR 2018/19 Gross Debt: £331.8m, CFR: £402.9m

Lower limit Upper limit

< 12 months Nil% 18% < 12 months 8.2%

12 to within 24 mths Nil% 18% 12 to within 24 mths 2.2%

24 mths, within 5 yrs Nil% 30% 24 mths, within 5 yrs 16.1%

5 to within 10 years 2.0% 60% 5 to within 10 years 16.4%

10 to within 30 years 2.0% 70% 10 to within 30 years 18.3%

30 years and above

15% 90%

30 years and above

38.8%

Year end position is £90.3m

(C, 6.2) The ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream, non-HRA. 2018/19

(C, 6.2) The ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream, HRA. 2018/19

£402.9m 

£331.8m

Actual figure is reported at the 31st March 2019

Actual figure is reported at the 31st March 2019

Actual Capital Financing Requirement as at 

31/03/19 (Including HRA)

Actual Net External debt as at 31/03/19

10.6%

(B, 8.7) Prudential limits for principal sums 

invested for periods over 365 days.

(B, 8.8) Variable interest rate exposure. 

Upper limit on loans. 2018/19 

(B, 8.8) Fixed loan interest rate exposure. 

2018/19

(C, 5.7) Operational Boundary. 2018/19

(C, 3.4) Net borrowing and the Capital 

Financing Requirement.

(C, 5.7) Authorised Limit. 2018/19

(B, 1.4) Adoption of the CIPFA Codes of 

Practice (Dec 2017) and Investment Guidance 

issued by MHCLG for Treasury Management 

(Feb 2018).

(C, 3.3) The combined estimates of the 

Capital Financing Requirement. 31.3.19

(B, 8.8) Prudential limits for the maturity 

structure of borrowing.

(C, 3.3) Estimates of the Capital Financing 

Requirement, HRA. 31.3.19

(*) Long Term Liabilities no higher than £91.3m

3.0%

11.5%The combined ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream. 2018/19

(*) Borrowing no higher than £309.7m

£391.6m. (C, 3.3) Estimates of the Capital Financing 

Requirement, non-HRA. 31.3.19

(*) Borrowing no higher than £277.7m

(*) Long Term Liabilities no higher than £93.3m

2.5%

9.6%

12.0%

Year end position is £241.5m

Actual % at 31.3.19

Year end position is £241.5m

Year end position is £90.3m

Adopted

£311.0m 

Adopted.

The Indicator is being complied with.Borrowing < estimated CFR except in the short 

term.

£299.6m.

£11.4m 

Maximum Gross Debt: £336.8m, CFR: £403.0m

£11.4m. 

£403.0m 

This Indicator is being complied with.

£75.3m

Not permitted; 3 months maximum

£238.0m

£433.0m

£174.0m

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental 
Services 

Date of Meeting 19 June 2019 

 

LEISURE SERVICES UPDATE 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider an update on the work undertaken, future plans and performance of 
Leisure Services. 
 

2.0 Recommendation: 
 

2.1 To scrutinise the work of Leisure Services and identify any matters for further 
scrutiny. 
 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation: 

3.1 
 

To ensure effective scrutiny of Leisure Services. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

 No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

3.4 Request Internal Audit to programme in to the annual work plan. 
Refer to external audit. 
 

 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 Leisure Services contribute to all three council priorities;  

 Priority One ‘The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool’; 

 Priority Two ‘Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience’  

 Priority Three ‘Organisational Resilience’ 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



 
5.0 Report Information 

 
5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
5.1.3 
 
 
 
5.1.4 
 

Scope of the Report 
 
The report provides an update on the work undertaken within the services with year-end 
finance and Key Performance Indicator figures for 2018/19. 
 
Leisure Services 
 
Leisure Services deliver a broad range of activities and programmes from within the three 
main leisure facilities and in community settings to help local residents to lead an active and 
healthy lifestyle. 
 
The scope of this report includes all service areas within Leisure, as set out below: 
 

 Leisure facilities; 
 Palatine Leisure Centre 
 Blackpool Sports Centre 
 Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre 

 Outdoor Activities Service 

 School Games programme 

 Active Blackpool GP Referral programme 

 Family Weight Management programme – Making Changes 

 Better Start Volunteer Programme 

 Outreach and Street Games programmes. 
 

5.1.5 
 
 
5.1.6 
 
 
 
 
5.1.7 
 

A background paper providing a detailed overview of the scope of leisure services can be 
found at Appendix 9(a). 
 
In 2018/19 the Leisure Services received over 1milion attendances to activities and facilities 
provided across Blackpool, with the three main leisure facilities alone seeing over 992,000 
attendances. 
 
 
The leisure service provides a range of activities and programmes to meet the growing 
demand of supporting people to lead an active and healthy lifestyle.  The range of services 
include targeted programmes that are free at the point of delivery along with a broad range 
of universal activities, which are available at a subsidised rate.  The leisure facilities offer a 
range of concessionary pricing options for targeted groups along with ‘pay as you go’, direct 
debit and annual membership options for those accessing the facilities on a regular basis. 
 

Page 102



 

5.2 
 
5.2.1 

Budget Information 
 
Leisure Services has an annual expenditure budget of £5,875,000 and an annual income 
target of £4,010,000, resulting in a net annual cost of £1,865,000 to Blackpool Council for the 
provision of leisure services. 
 

5.3 
 

5.3.1 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
5.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4.2 
 
 
 
 
5.4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Performance, Highlights and Challenges 
 
A Performance dashboard can be found in Appendix 9(b) giving a more detailed overview of 
patronage, member and retention performance in key areas along with customer feedback 
statistics for 2018/19 compared to 2017/18. 
 
Health and Fitness 
 
Leisure Services operate health and fitness facilities at all three of its leisure centres.  The 
facilities include dedicated fitness studios, spinning studios and exercise class studios at each 
site.   In 2018/19 the health and fitness facilities had over 247,000 visits across the three sites 
with Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre seeing the highest number of visits.  Whilst this 
figure is less than the previous year, the growth in health and fitness members by 5% 
compared to the previous year and the slight improvement in retention for health and fitness 
members, demonstrates that the health and fitness provision remains popular amongst local 
residents and that once we have them engaged, they receive a positive experience that 
retains helps them. 
 
The health and fitness income targets remain a challenge for the service, but a number of 
capital developments to improve and refresh the facilities to help attract a new market are 
being developed.  The main focus of these developments will be at Palatine Leisure Centre 
and Blackpool Sports Centre, where the facilities are looking tired and in need of a refresh. 
 
Investment into Blackpool Sports Centre changing rooms and ground floor toilets has been 
confirmed and work will start on these at the end of June.  Currently the facilities are under 
utilised due to the condition, which has made it challenging for the centre to attract early 
morning users who could shower post workout and go straight to work.  The refurbishment 
will create a modern, high quality feel to the ancillary facilities that will enable the centre to 
attract a wider corporate market.   
 
A review of the exercise class programme across the centres took place in 2018.  The aim of 
the review was to gain feedback from customers, staff and industry experts to produce a high 
quality exercise class programme that would meet the needs of customers, reflect industry 
trends and enhance the overall performance of the sites.   As part of the process, focus group 
workshops were carried out with customers at each centre as well as staff who delivered the 
programme. 
 

Page 103



5.4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
5.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5.2 
 
 
 
5.5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
5.6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6.2 

The review resulted in indepth analysis of the timetables compared to high performing 
timetables elsewhere and ultimately some classes being removed and new classes added to 
the timetable.  Overall, the number of classes were reduced to help improve the overall 
percent capacity of classes and customer experience.  The changes resulted in some 
animosity and negativity from a small number of customers who enjoyed these classes, but 
will put the service in a better position to attract a new audience in the longer term. 
  
Active Blackpool  
 
The Active Blackpool programme is a referral programme aimed at individuals who would 
benefit from additional support to lead a more active lifestyle.   The service works closely 
with a number of specialist health teams including stroke, cardiac, cancer, diabetes, bariatrics 
and MSK (musculoskeletal) as well as GP surgeries to support patients within these services 
to lead and active and health lifestyle through a range of activities and programmes. 
 
The programme is open ended, allowing customers to access the service for life.  There is an 
ongoing cost for customers from the start of the programme, giving them the opportunity to 
‘pay as you go’ or pay for a membership via a monthly direct debit (£20/month). 
 
The service has a very strong partnership with the Cardiac Rehabilitation Service ran by 
Blackpool Victoria Teaching Hospital, who work in partnership to deliver a cardiac 
rehabilitation programme for clients who have a cardiac condition, including heart failure, 
from the leisure facilities.  To support the growth that this programme has seen in recent 
years, the service invested in additional staff, supporting them to gain the BACPR 
qualification enabling them to deliver specialist cardiac exercise classes. 
 
The service have recently strengthened the referral pathway with the stroke team based at 
Blackpool Victoria Teaching Hospital, who were keen to develop specialist physical activity 
provision for individuals who have suffered a stroke as part of their rehabilitation 
programme.  As part of this partnership, the stroke service paid for a member of the active 
blackpool team to complete a course specialising in exercise for patients with neurological 
conditions, with the aim of putting on some specialist classes.  The member of staff recently 
completed the qualification and a range of specialist classes will be added to the timetable in 
Summer 2019. 
 
Learn to Swim 
 
The learn to swim scheme which runs at both Palatine Leisure Centre and Moor Park Health 
and Leisure Centre provides an opportunity for children to learn to swim, develop their 
aquatic skills and ultimately progress into the local swimming club, Blackpool Aquatics.  
Leisure Services work in partnership with Blackpool Aquatics to provide a seamless 
progression pathway and competitive swimming opportunities for local people.   
 
The learn to swim programme has seen further growth in the previous 12 months, and is 

Page 104



 
 
 
 
5.6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
5.7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

projected to continue growing over the next two years, which presents an opportunity for 
increased income generation and an increase in the number of children learning a vital life 
skill.   
 
However this growth presents a number of challenges in balancing the demand for water 
space across the two swimming pools, to meet the demands of a wide range of customers 
from local clubs to families and fitness swimmers.  A key focus in the previous 12 months has 
been on growing the pool of qualified swimming coaches as demand nationally is not 
currently being met.  A range of coaching courses have been organized and delivered from 
Palatine Leisure Centre to support local individuals interested in becoming swimming coaches 
and looking for local employment.  A recent coaching course has resulted in an additional 
three newly qualified teachers who will support the growth of the programme. 
 
Feel Good Factory 
 
Leisure Services have two Feel Good Factory facilities – one at Palatine Leisure Centre and 
the other at Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre.  The facilities are aimed at the older 
generation and adults who are inactive.  The facilities offer a range of toning equipment that 
are easy to use and low impact in a friendly and social setting, providing a workout 
environment that is relaxing and informal. 
 
In December 2017 a number of changes were made to the booking system for the Feel Good 
Factory, as a large number of customers were booking back to back sessions, which isn’t 
recommended and was resulting in new customers being unable to book a slot, resulting the 
service struggling to attract new customers due to the lack of availability.  These changes 
have contributed to a reduction in the patronage for these facilities, due to customers no 
longer being able to book two sessions back to back.  Whilst the patronage has reduced, the 
number of members using the facilities at both sites has increased positively and the 
retention has also improved demonstrating that customers are happy with the service they 
are receiving.   
 
A further contribution to the reduction in patronage for the feel good factory facilities has 
been an issue recently identified by the service, where customers had not been checking in 
for their session.  This does not impact on the income for the service as the customers pay via 
monthly direct debit, however it does impact on the patronage figures and has since been 
address by the service. 
 
Shape Master, the company who manufacture the feel good factory equipment and 
highlighted us as a good practice facility due to having one of the highest membership 
numbers per facility in the country as well as an above average length of stay for feel good 
factory customers. 
 
 
 

Page 105



5.8 
 
5.8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
5.9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
5.10.1 
 
 
 

Outdoor Activities 
 
The Outdoor Activity Service renewed their Adventure Activities Licensing Authority license in 
March 2019, enabling them to continue providing a range of watersports activities including 
kayaking, canoeing and raft building on Stanley Park Lake to children and young people 
across Blackpool.  In addition, the service offers a range of outdoor activity packages, 
including high ropes activities, team building, den building and ecological activities, rock 
climbing and bouldering. 
 
The service is continuing to increase the range of groups and organisations it works with 
including an ongoing partnership arrangement with the Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) who now 
include 20 hours/ week of outdoor activities as part of their curriculum offering to all of their 
pupils.  Furthermore, a number of primary and secondary schools have purchased education 
packages to enable local children to develop their skills and experiences through outdoor 
activities. 
 
An ongoing challenge for this service remains the unpredictable nature of British weather, 
which impacts particularly on ‘pay on the day’ customers to both the high ropes course and 
watersports activities.  The service has focused on developing the number of groups and 
schools who purchase longer term packages over several weeks or months as these are less 
impacted by the weather. 
 
Swimming 
 
Swimming is offered at Moor Park Health and Leisure Centre and Palatine Leisure Centre.  
The programme offers a range of opportunities to enjoy the pools from family fun sessions to 
fitness swimming.  The pools are also utilised for adult and children’s swimming lessons, 
school swimming, swimming clubs and events and competitions which can place conflicting 
demands on the space available and present a challenge for public swimming space.   
 
Swimming is often seen as a wet weather activity, particularly with families looking for an 
activity to do at weekends and during school holidays.  Swimming patronage dropped by 
13,000 attendances across both sites in 2018/19 compared to the previous year and 
following some detailed analysis, there is no clear drop in any specific users groups – pay and 
play, contract and free swimming all saw a reduction in attendances.  Therefore it is believed 
that the reduction is as a result of the dry sunny weather over the summer of 2018 as the 
main impact was seen between May and October. 
 
Customer Engagement  
 
Leisure Services take a proactive approach to engaging with customers and encourage them 
to provide feedback on their visitor experience to enable the service to make informed 
decisions on how to improve the service.    
 

Page 106



5.10.2 
 
 
 
5.10.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.0 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
6.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leisure Services uses an internationally recognised system for proactively measuring 
satisfaction amongst service users.  A more detailed overview and performance information 
taken from the system can be found at Appendix 9(c). 
 
Net Promoter Score®, or NPS®, measures customer experience across a number of business 
sectors internationally. Customers are asked ‘On a scale of 0 - 10 how likely are you to 
recommend Moor Park Health and Leisure Centre to friends and family?’ Appendix 9(b) 
shows that between May 2018 and May 2019 over 8,500 feedback questionnaires were sent 
to customers with over 1,200 responding.  Both the number of questionnaires sent and the 
number of responses were an increase the previous year which demonstrates that our 
customers are actively engaged with the service enabling us to develop and improve the 
service based on the most recent feedback.   
 
Service wide challenges 
 
The service strives to continually provide opportunities to increase the health and wellbeing 
of Blackpool residents through a range of free and low cost initiatives, projects and activities.  
In recent years the amount of external funding opportunities available to local authority 
leisure providers has reduced significantly making the opportunity to provide targeted 
projects and activities challenging.  Furthermore, the drive to realise savings and reduce the 
net subsidy of providing leisure has resulted in increased income targets in the more 
commercial activities provided, such as health and fitness. 
 
The continual need to balance the drive to increase income with supporting Blackpool 
residents to lead a healthier lifestyle through subsidised initiatives can be challenging, 
particularly when communicating our service aims and objectives to partners and third sector 
organisations. 
 
Service Brand 
 
Sport Blackpool has seen significant service growth since the ‘Sport Blackpool’ brand was 
established in 2007.  Over time the service has taken on new areas including the Active 
Blackpool health referral programme, the PE and School Sports Team, Cycle Blackpool and 
the Outdoor Revolution Team.  The service offering is far wider than the names suggests, 
encompassing a broad range of activities, facilities and programmes designed to encourage a 
support healthy and active lifestyle. 
 
Many partners and customers believe that ‘Sport Blackpool’ is simply the facility operations, 
which it traditionally was and are unaware of the wider community, schools and health work 
the service undertakes.  Feedback from partners and customer is that it puts many of people 
off as they believe we are about sport specifically rather than health, wellbeing and active 
living, which better reflects the range of programmes and services we deliver.  In preparation 
for the refresh of the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, we have been speaking with a 
number of internal and external partners who have all expressed surprise at the breadth of 

Page 107



 
 
6.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
 
 
7.1 
 
7.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.1.2 
 
 
 
 
7.1.3 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
7.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2.2 
 

the service.   
 
From surveys carried out previously, there is a strong brand recognition that Sport Blackpool 
is a Council service, which is positive; however, the lack of recognition for what Sport 
Blackpool encompasses means that the Council is not getting the recognition for the activities 
and programmes that didn’t traditionally sit under the Sport Blackpool brand. 
 
Furthermore, a number of other leisure operators, trusts and organisations who previously 
had ‘Sport’ in their title have moved towards a brand name that better reflects the broader 
work they do, such as Active Lancashire who were previously Lancashire Sport and UKActive 
who were previously the Fitness Industry Association (FIA).   
 
Key achievements in 2018/2019 
 
The key achievements of the service in 2018/2019 have been: 
 
Blackpool Sports Centre 3G Pitch 
 
Blackpool Council has been awarded a £308,133 grant from the Premier League and 
The FA Facilities Fund towards the project. The council worked alongside the Football 
Foundation and the Lancashire County FA to compile a five-year Football Development 
Plan, which is a vision of how sport will be played on site with an emphasis on 
increasing participation. 

 
The number of teams using the new pitch is set to grow from 60 to 86 teams in junior 
and adult formats, with 15 new female teams created. This will support a predicted 
increase of over 150 female players and is expected to result in an 85% growth in 
football participation within this demographic. 

 
Significant growth in the number of Under-14 footballers using the site is also 
expected. This has been identified as a key objective to deliver and is expected to result 
in nearly 200 new players, which will be supported by the formation of 21 teams within 
this age group. 
  
Facilities Maintenance  
 
A working group between leisure services and property services has been established, which 
has enabled a focus to be given to addressing some of the maintenance challenges within the 
facilities.  The group has identified a number of key priorities and funding to address some of 
these, however it is evident that funding is not available to address all of the priorities 
identified and the group will continue to explore funding options for identified works. 
 
Stanley Park Lake 
Parks and Leisure Services secured £30,000 from the Coastal Revival Fund to carry out two 

Page 108



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2.4 
 
 
 
 
8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
8.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
8.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.1.3 
 
 

studies on Stanley Park Lake – an economic feasibility study that explores the opportunity to 
develop the watersports offer and the economic impact this could have on the town 
alongside an ecological study that explores the range of options available for dredging the 
lake to improve the overall water depth and ecological habit for local wildlife.  Both studies 
commenced in April 2019 with the first draft of the reports due in the coming weeks.  Once 
these are complete, opportunities will be explored to identify external funding opportunities 
to dredge the lake in line with the processes identified within the ecological study. 
 
Direct Debit Collection Review 
The direct debit collection process for leisure services was reviewed in 2018 and market 
testing took place to explore opportunities for an external collection company to take on the 
direct debit collection process.  Following a tender exercise and the review of submissions 
from a number of companies it was agreed that the direct debit collection process should 
remain in-house. 
 
Website refresh 
The Sport Blackpool website was completely refreshed and launched 2018, providing greater 
functionality on mobile devices and a more visually appealing platform with improved 
functionality. 
 
Future Priorities 
 
Following the completion of the feasibility studies, Leisure and Parks will continue to work in 
partnership with the Friends of Stanley Park to explore external funding opportunities that 
would enable the lake to be desilted along with wider park infrastructure improvements.  
This work could enable a greater range of watersports to be offered such as sailing, 
windsurfing, stand up paddle boarding and potentially open water swimming. 
 
Leisure Services are currently developing a number of project proposals that could see 
significant investment in the leisure facilities and provide a new range of activities and 
opportunities for local residents.  These proposals will be developed in the coming months, 
with the intention of implementation within this financial year, should the proposals be given 
permission to proceed. 
 
Following changes to the VAT exemption criteria for leisure services last year, Blackpool 
Council received a rebate.  A corporate decision was made to ring fence £500,000 for 
maintenance of the leisure facilities.  The new working group is currently identifying the key 
priorities for investment, with agreement already reached to refurbish the changing rooms at 
Blackpool Sports Centre and reconfigure the reception entrance at Palatine Leisure Centre.  
 
 
Blackpool’s Sports and Physical Activity Strategy requires reviewing and rewriting.  The 
process will involve consultation with key partners and integration of other relevant 
strategies locally, regionally and nationally.  This work will be carried out over the coming 

Page 109



 
 
8.1.4 
 
 

months, with a draft strategy ready for sharing in Autumn/Winter 2019. 
 
As part of the preparations for refreshing the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy and 
commencing a consultation process with partners linked to this, the service will rebrand 
themselves as ‘Active Blackpool’.  This service name better reflects all of the work the service 
does and will enable all areas of the service to be reflected in its name.  A rebrand will enable 
newer parts of the service that were not incorporated within the original ‘Sport Blackpool’ 
brand development to be bought into the rebranding and feel part of one team. 
 

  

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

9.0 List of Appendices: 
 

 Appendix 9(a) – Leisure Services Background Paper 
Appendix 9(b) – Leisure Services Performance dashboard 
Appendix 9(c) – Net Promoter Score (NPS) Overview 
 

 

10.0 Legal considerations: 
 

10.1 
 

None 
 

11.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 
 

12.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

12.1 None 
 

13.0 
 

Financial considerations: 
 

13.1 See body of the report and Appendix 9(b). 
 

14.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

14.1 None 
 

15.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

15.1 
 

None 

Page 110



 

16.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken: 
 

16.1 
 

None 
 

17.0 Background papers: 
 

17.1 
 

None 

 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9(a) 

 
Leisure Scrutiny Report – Appendix 9(a) 
Lisa Arnold, Leisure Services Manager 
June 2019 

Leisure Services – Service Scope 

 

As the strategic lead for sport and physical activity across Blackpool, Leisure Services has a broad 

scope in the range of programmes delivered, facilities operated and range of projects the service is 

involved in, working closely with partners locally, regionally and nationally to drive the physical 

activity agenda across the local area.  This paper provides an overview of the service scope.  

Leisure facilities 
 
Leisure Services operate the three main leisure facilities strategically located in the north, central 
and south areas of Blackpool, to make the facilities as accessible as possible to local people; 
 

 Blackpool Sports Centre 
 Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre 
 Palatine Leisure Centre 

 
Furthermore, the service have recently entered into a partnership with South Shore Academy to 
operate their sports facilities outside of school hours, making the sports hall, 3G pitch and dance 
studio open for community use. 
 
The service also manages the Blackpool Outdoor Activity Service, which included the high ropes, and 
underground caving facilities on Stanley Park as well as the coach led water sport activities on 
Stanley Park lake.  
 
Leisure Services operates health and fitness facilities at all three of its leisure centres.  The facilities 
include dedicated fitness studios, spinning studios and exercise class studios at each site.   This is a 
key business area for the service, contributing over £1million in income to the service income 
targets. 
 
Active Blackpool  

The Active Blackpool programme is a health referral programme aimed at individuals who would 

benefit from additional support to lead a more active lifestyle.   Traditionally the programme has 

accepted referrals from health practitioners, with a particular focus on GP surgeries.  However, over 

the last 2 years there has been a focus on increasing the referral partners to other health 

practitioners and partners including the Musculoskeletal service located at Whitegate Drive Health 

Centre, the Stroke Service and cardiac respiratory service located at Blackpool Victoria Teaching 

hospital as well as specialist cancer, diabetic and pre-diabetic services. 

Learn to Swim 

The learn to swim scheme which runs at both Palatine Leisure Centre and Moor Park Health & 

Leisure Centre provides an opportunity for children to learn to swim, develop their aquatic skills and 

ultimately progress into the local swimming club, Blackpool Aquatics.  Leisure Services work in 

partnership with Blackpool Aquatics to provide a seamless progression pathway and competitive 

swimming opportunities for local people.   

Page 113



Appendix 9(a) 

 
Leisure Scrutiny Report – Appendix 9(a) 
Lisa Arnold, Leisure Services Manager 
June 2019 

Feel Good Factory 

Leisure Services have two Feel Good Factory facilities – one at Palatine Leisure Centre and the other 

at Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre.  The facilities are aimed at the older generation and adults 

who are inactive.  The facilities offer a range of toning equipment that are easy to use and low 

impact in a friendly and social setting, providing a workout environment that is relaxing and 

informal. 

Outdoor Activities 

The outdoor activity service obtained it’s AALA license in March 2017, enabling them to provide a 

range of watersports activities including kayaking, canoeing and raft building on Stanley Park Lake to 

children and young people across Blackpool.  In addition, the service offers a range of outdoor 

activity packages, including high ropes activities, team building, den building and ecological 

activities, rock climbing and bouldering. 

The service provides activity packages for a range of groups and organisations including a 

partnership with the Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) who include 20 hours/ week of outdoor activities as 

part of their curriculum offering to all of their pupils.  Furthermore, a number of primary and 

secondary schools have purchased education packages to enable local children to develop their skills 

and experiences through outdoor activities. 

Passport to Leisure 

The Passport to Leisure scheme provides free and reduced access to leisure provision for all of our 

looked after children and young people up to the age of 21 years. Young adults, up to the age of 25 

years are also included if in full-time training, education or in an apprenticeship and where they are 

involved with the Leaving Care Service. The scheme allows access to a broad range of activities and 

facilities including free access to swimming, gyms, badminton, table tennis, rock climbing and 

bouldering.  It also provides half price access to swimming lessons, gymnastics programmes, holiday 

activities and exercise classes.  Every looked after child is automatically enrolled on the scheme with 

a leisure card and accompanying information being sent to their residing address.   

Free Swimming 

Leisure Services provides free swimming for every child and young person during the school holidays 

at both of the council operated swimming pools. In 2018/19 there were 17,931 free attendances by 

children and young people.    

Bikeability 

Leisure Services deliver the Bikeability programme, teaching primary school children to ride their 

bikes safely, giving them the confidence and skills to use their bikes for active travel.  Between April 

and December 2018, 605 children took part in the level 1 and level 2 Bikeability programme, which is 

delivered through interested primary schools across Blackpool. 

Sport4Champions 

Page 114



Appendix 9(a) 

 
Leisure Scrutiny Report – Appendix 9(a) 
Lisa Arnold, Leisure Services Manager 
June 2019 

The Sport4Champions programme is a 6 week programme delivered to year 6 children in partnership 

with Blackpool Catering Services, promoting and encouraging both healthy eating and physical 

activity, supporting participants to identify their strengths and opportunities to join local activities 

outside of school to help develop lifelong physical activity habits.  The programme was delivered in 

15 primary schools in 2018 with 489 pupils engaged in the programme. 

School Games 

The School Games Programme is a national initiative aimed at improving physical activity levels and 

providing competitive sporting opportunities in educational settings.  During 2017/18 academic 

year, the initiative engaged 31 primary, 8 secondary and 3 special school, educational diversity and 2 

colleges, with over 20,700 attendances across the same period.  The programme provides an 

opportunity for students to experience 26 different sports, to highlight and promote the range of 

physical activity opportunities available to them outside of the mainstream sports traditionally 

provided by schools. 

Work placements and Apprenticeship Opportunities 

Leisure Services have worked hard in recent years to establish a strong apprenticeship programme 

across the service, providing apprenticeships in four different service areas.  These apprenticeships 

are promoted in partnership with children’s services to ensure the opportunities reach vulnerable 

young people looking for employment.  The service always look to recruit from the local area and 

have had a number of apprentices complete the programme and progress into permanent 

employment with the service. 

Concessionary Pricing Scheme 

Leisure Services operate a concessionary pricing scheme providing reduced price access to leisure 

facilities and activities to local residents who are either; over 60 years old; under 16 years; on low/no 

income; disabled. 

Free Access for Carers   
 
We allow carers who accompany a disabled user to access a range of activities for free across our 
three leisure sites, including swimming and the fitness rooms. 
 
Under 5’s swim free   
 
Throughout the year, parents can bring a child under the age of five swimming for free. 
 
Blackpool Polar Bears Disability Swimming Club  
 
Blackpool Council, Leisure Services financially support Blackpool Polar Bears to provide free 
swimming lessons to adults and children with a disability from across Lancashire.  The club are 
provided with free use at Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre every Sunday morning and coaches to 
support the session are provided by leisure services free of charge. 
 
Blackpool Bears Multi Sport Disability Club  

Page 115



Appendix 9(a) 

 
Leisure Scrutiny Report – Appendix 9(a) 
Lisa Arnold, Leisure Services Manager 
June 2019 

 
Blackpool Bears are Grant funded by Leisure Services to provide a multi sport club for children, 
young people and adults with a disability.  The club operates from Blackpool Sports Centre on a 
Saturday morning and attracts over 100 people each week to take part in a range of sports. 
 
Over 50’s free inductions  
Anyone over the age of 50 years is entitled to a free induction within one our three leisure facilities, 
to encourage more over 50’s to become or remain physically active as they get older.  
 

 

Page 116



Appendix 9(b)

Leisure Services Key Performance Indicators - Service Overview

Leisure Services Performance .+/- 2017/18 Income 2018/19 Income* .+/-
Overall Leisure Services Patronage

955,975.00£      1,035,155.00£     
241,165.00£      273,892.00£        

57,783.00£        148,424.00£        
142,419.00£      172,225.00£        
289,935.00£      330,125.00£        

Young People facilities
Young people outreach

Memberships
Mar-18 Mar-19 .+/- Mar-18 Mar-19 .+/-

Health & Fitness 3092 3241 52.21 52.96
Feel Good Factory 680 733 19.13 22.65
Learn to swim 1414 1534 n/a n/a
Active Blackpool 855 879 27.26 30.97

Leisure Services Customer Engagement & Feedback
Site May 18 - May 19 .+/-
MPHLC 9-        
PLC 22-      
BSC 4        

Customer feedback questionniares sent 33%
Customer feedback questionnaires returned 45%

Net Promoter Score 
(NPS)

*Change in VAT rules has partially contributed towards increase in income

Overall facility patronage
Health & Fitness
Swimming
Active Blackpool
Feel Good Factory
Learn to swim

992,407                       
247,160

136,710

49
43
50

41818

1,032,746

74,020
139,422

32777

2018/19 Patronage

110,269
22,094
72,913
77,120

1,065,523 1,034,225
2017/18 Patronage

260,123
117,521

20,962
89,616

Total membership Average length of stay

May 17 - May 18
58
65
46

6399
837

8500
1218

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9(c) 

Appendix 9(c) – Net Promoter Score Overview 
Leisure Services Scrutiny Committee Report June 2019 

Leisure Services Customer Feedback and Engagement System Overview 
 
Leisure Services take a proactive approach to engaging with customers and encourage them 
to provide feedback on their visitor experience to enable the service to make informed 
decisions on how to improve the service.    
 
Leisure Services uses an internationally recognised system for proactively measuring 
satisfaction amongst service users. 
 
Net Promoter Score®, or NPS®, measures customer experience across a number of business 
sectors internationally. Customers are asked ‘On a scale of 0 - 10 how likely are you to 
recommend Moor Park Health & Leisure Centre to friends and family?’ 
 

Respondents are grouped as follows:  

Promoters (score 9-10) are loyal enthusiasts who will keep buying and refer others, fueling 

growth. 

Passives (score 7-8) are satisfied but unenthusiastic customers who are vulnerable to 

competitive offerings. 

Detractors (score 0-6) are unhappy customers who can damage your brand and impede 

growth through negative word-of-mouth. 

 

 
Subtracting the percentage of Detractors from the percentage of Promoters yields the Net 

Promoter Score, which can range from a low of -100 (if every customer is a Detractor) to a 

high of 100 (if every customer is a Promoter). 
 
Sport Blackpool scored an overall satisfaction score of +51.  This is 8 points higher than the 
national average across the leisure industry (inclusive of local authority, trust and private 
operators) and 15 points higher than the North West industry average. 
 

Page 119



Appendix 9(c) 

Appendix 9(c) – Net Promoter Score Overview 
Leisure Services Scrutiny Committee Report June 2019 

The table below shows the NPS score and responses by category for each leisure facility for 
the month of May 2019. 
 

Rank Location Score Detractors Passives Promoters 

1st Palatine Leisure Centre 65 2 (5.9%) 8 (23.5%) 24 (70.6%) 

2nd Blackpool Sports Centre 62 2 (9.5%) 4 (19.0%) 15 (71.4%) 

3rd Moor Park Health & Leisure 
Centre 

54 5 (8.5%) 17 (28.8%) 37 (62.7%) 

Total  60 9 (8%) 29 (23.7%) 76 (68.2%) 

 
The management team aim to contact every customer who rates the service below 7 to gain 
further feedback and understand how the service can be improved.  There is a clear 
correlation between following up with customers who are considered ‘detractors’ and the 
number of those customers who then ‘drop out’ of using the service. 
 
As well as scoring the service from 0 – 10, customers have the opportunity to provide a 
comment on their experience.  The top five areas that customers have commented on 
throughout over the previous 12 months are shown below, along with whether their overall 
score made them a ‘promoter’, ‘passive’ or ‘detractor’. 
 

 
 
The most positive area that customers have provided feedback on over the past 12 months 
has been staffing, with 444 comments received about leisure staff of which 82% have 
provided an overall positive score (9 – 10). 

Page 120



Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental 
Services 

Date of Meeting 19 June 2019 

 

PARK AND GREEN ENVIRONMENT SERVICE UPDATE 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider an update on work undertaken, future plans and performance of the Park and 
Green Environment Service. 
 

2.0 Recommendation: 
 

2.1 To scrutinise the work of the service and identify any matters for further scrutiny. 
 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation: 

3.1 
 

To ensure effective scrutiny of Parks and Green Environment Service 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by 
the Council? 
 

 No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

3.4 Request Internal Audit to programme in to the annual work plan. 
Refer to external audit. 

 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 The Parks and Green Environment Service contributes to all three council priorities;  

 Priority One ‘The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool’; 

 Priority Two ‘Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience’  

 Priority Three ‘Organisational Resilience’ 
 

5.0 Report Information 
 

5.1 The report provides an update on the work and performance of the service with year-end finance for 
2018/19.  The Parks and Green Environment Service is responsible for the management and 
improvement of Blackpool’s parks and open spaces to maximise the benefits green spaces can offer 
to social, economic and environmental objectives. 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10



 
6.0 
 

Parks and Green Environment Service overview 

6.1 The Parks and Green Environment Service employs 30 staff. The main function of the service is the 
day to day management and maintenance of:  

 Over 100 Parks and Open Spaces 

 Highway verges and roundabouts  

 Over 50 children’s playgrounds and multi games areas 

 Marton Mere Local Nature Reserve and ecological sites  

 Blackpool Council’s tree stock 

 Over 70 sports pitches, cricket wickets, bowling greens and tennis courts   

 Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) to schools, academy’s, colleges and outside organisations. 
 

6.2 The Service also assists in the delivery of parks and sporting events, the delivery of the Better Start 
programme through Park Ranger Service and support and guidance to local parks Friends Groups.  
 

6.3 The service contributes and plays an active part in supporting some of Blackpool Council’s key 
strategies and plans. Including:  

 Local Plan 

 Green and Blue Infrastructure Strategy 

 Open Spaces Asssessment. 
 

6.4 The service is a lead on the Play Pitch Strategy that maps out the usage, condition of grass sports 
provision and facilities. In addition, the Parks and Green Environment Service plays an advisory role in 
supporting other Blackpool Council departments, elected members and outside agencies around 
grounds maintenance issues I.e. Planning, new housing developments and tree issues.  
 

6.5 Operations  
 

6.5.1 To meet the demands of the seasons the operational staff work annualised hours. This means 
summer (April to September) 7am to 4pm and winter (October – March) 8am to 3pm. Through the 
growing and sporting seasons the majority of the work is cyclic, so the staff work to Rota’s. This work 
includes:  

 General grounds maintenance  

 General grass cutting 

 Bowling green maintenance 

 Sports pitch markings and inspections 

 Playground inspections 

 Stanley Park bedding maintenance. 
 

6.5.2 During the winter months the teams are reorganised and their primary role is shrub pruning and full 
site maintenance. Specific sites are selected on a rolling programme to receive in depth maintenance.  
 

6.5.3 This results in sites requiring less frequent visits through the growing season. Children’s playgrounds 
require regular inspections and maintenance. A designated Playground Technician’s role is to manage 
these facilities.   
 

Page 122



6.5.4 The “tree gang” are a full-time gang of two that manage the tree stock with priorities given to the 
dead, diseased and dangerous trees. They also carry out work to private customers and are on call 
through some of Blackpool’s extreme weather conditions if tree work is required.  
 

6.5.5 The Service Level Agreement (SLA) team carry out ground maintenance for other Council departments 
facilities together with organisations outside the authority. The work ranges from grass cutting and 
general maintenance to playground and sports day markings.  
 

6.6 Development  
 

6.6.1 The development of Blackpool’s Parks and open spaces includes:  

 The delivery of the Better Start Parks and Open Spaces programme which includes physical 
park improvements and the Park Ranger Service, consisting of Early Years Park Rangers and 
Junior Park Rangers 

 The coordination of the management of Marton Mere Local Nature Reserve & ecological sites 
across the borough 

 The coordination of volunteering activities across green spaces through the Volunteer Ranger 
network and working alongside Park Friends groups, offering support and assistance through 
the Open Spaces Network to share good practice 

 The delivery of playground and park improvement schemes involving sourcing external funds, 
developing schemes, project management, stakeholder engagement and consultation 

 Working in partnership with other Council services for example through commenting on 
planning applications and new open space development such as Layton Recreational Ground 

 The delivery of the Green & Blue Infrastructure strategy with partners and stakeholders  

 Supporting events on parks and opens paces undertaken by partners and Friends groups. 
 

7.0 Budget Information 
 

7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Between 2014/2015 and 2018/2019 Parks Budget has decreased by £444k.This is due to the 
Comprehensive Spending Review cuts applied in 2014/2015 and again in 2015/2016. Parks have 
managed their budget by decreasing staff numbers and making efficiencies in other areas of spend as 
well as generating more income. Savings have had to be made but the service has worked hard to 
secure other funding sources, for example Better Start Funding which equates to £795k over the last 
3 years. This has helped deliver events and projects within the Blackpool community. 
 

8.0 Key Performance Indicators 
 

8.1 Through support from the volunteer community and improving the way volunteer hours are 
administered the KPI for volunteer hours has exceeded all expectations. The total is equivalent to 
over 3800 days of support in our Parks and Open Spaces. 
 

  

Page 123



8.2 Since 2017 there has been a dramatic increase in the number of events delivered. This in part is due 
to the number of free events delivered by Park Rangers on behalf of the Better Start Programme.  
  

  
  

2016/17  2017/18  2018/19  

Target  Actual  Target  Actual  Target  Actual  

Volunteer Hours  2 000  8,586  10,000  13 474  15,000  29,102  

Number of events  60  72  79  223  245  408  

Income from events  £0  £4 972  £7,500  £24,960  £10,000 £10,294  
 

 
9.0 
 

 
People and Parks  
 

9.1 Park Ranger Service  
 

9.1.1 In 2018/19 the Better Start funded Early Years Park rangers undertook over 125 events to 1700 
people across Claremont Park, Revoe Park, George Bancroft Park and Mereside. Their activities are 
focused at families with children aged 0-4 years to engage them in their local park and encourage 
imaginative play. The Park Rangers have launched a ‘50 Things to do in Nature Before you are 5’ 
booklet which complements their events programme and gives parents ideas of fun and engaging 
activities they can do in any park with their children. At Revoe Park, the Rangers have held additional 
larger family events such as a Children’s Garden Parties, a Flower Festival and a Winter Wonderland 
Fairy trail. The Park Rangers are now qualified Forest Level 3 Practitioners enabling them to lead 
Forest School Sessions for children in Blackpool.  
 

9.1.2 A new Junior Park Ranger programme is being developed with a new Junior Park Ranger Coordinator 
starting in June. Funding has been secured from Head Start and Better Start, and ward Councillors to 
create engaging activities for young people on Blackpool’s Parks to inspire the next generation to get 
involved with and respect their green spaces. 
  
 

9.1.3 Following the initial success of the Early Years Park Ranger programme, Better Start have recently 
committed additional funding to expand the service to include 3 additional roles and extended until 
2023.  The Parks and Green Environment Service are working towards a vision for self-sustaining 
Ranger Service by investigating income generation through paid for activities, birthday parties and 
school visits.  
 

9.2 Volunteering and Friends Group  
 

9.2.1 The Parks Service work with 15 Friends groups across various parks and open spaces who together 
form the Open Spaces Network.  The scope of Friends groups varies amongst groups, but many 
undertake tasks and projects such as fundraising, gardening improvements, events and fun days, the 
improvement of facilities and infrastructure. The Parks and Green Environment Service provide 
support by assisting with event organisation, fundraising, advice and expertise.  
 

9.2.2 The Volunteer Rangers have undertaken practical conservation work across Stanley Park, Marton 
Mere Nature Reserve and Herons Reach. This year has seen the group have complete tasks such as 
reed bed clearance, infrastructure repairs, grassland management and scrub clearance. The Volunteer 
Ranger team have also been collating past and present wildlife records and putting together a 

Page 124



comprehensive archive of the site including past reports, articles and visitor’s memories. This year has 
seen 3 Volunteer Internships undertaken by graduate students who have taken a lead role in 
supervising the practical work and gathering records and data to monitor the site and feed into the 
future management programme.  
 

9.2.3 Both Stanley Park and Marton Mere Local Nature Reserve Visitor Centres are manned by volunteers 
who showcase the sites and promote events 
 

9.3 Events 
 

9.3.1 There were over 300 events in Parks during 2018/19 with an estimated audience of over 40 000 
people attending.  
 

9.3.2 Highlights include;   

 Every Sunday from mid-May until mid-September (weather permitting) local bands perform 
on the Bandstand, which can draw crowds of up to 3,000 people as this is a free event open 
to all 

 Theatre performances at the Bandstand and Visitor Centre of The Reluctant Dragon, Mid-
Summers Night’s dream and The Snow Queen last year 

 Armed Forces event in June and a special 100year memorial event including poppy display 
and the unveiling of a bespoke commemorative bench 

 A wide range of activities undertaken during Love Parks Week across serval parks. These were 
popular children’s activities which included Heritage walks, Teddy Bears picnic and Circus 
skills  

 The annual Library Service led Wordpool Festival at Stanley Park in which over 2,000 people 
came along to watch imaginative story telling performances and participate in literacy 
themed activities 

 Several large sporting events including Masters Rugby tournament, Hockey Festivals and 
Athletics meetings.  

 Bubble Rush & Pretty Mudder charity races took place on Lawsons showground and Heron’s 
Reach 

 A weekly Parkrun event which is run by volunteers and attracts over150 runners each time   

 A Classic car show held in the Italian gardens in Stanley Park with over 200 cars. 
 

9.3.3 There is an extensive events programme booked for 2019 including Wind in the Willows & Christmas 
Carol performances at Stanley Park, 90th celebrations of the Bandstand. 
 

10.0 Current Key Projects and Achievements   
 

10.1 Better Start Parks Programme  
 

10.1.1 Through the Blackpool Better Start partnership £795,000 has been invested into our Parks and Open 
Spaces to improve them for families with young children. This investment comprises of a capital 
development programme to improve the infrastructure and facilities of targeted parks and a revenue 
funded Park Ranger Service to engage families.   
  

Page 125



10.1.2 In 2018/19 Revoe Park has been subject to an investment in the region of £100,000 which has 
included Phase 2 of the Early Years Play garden, Nature trail installations, picnic space and dog 
exercise space. The community garden has gone from strength to strength with the addition of a 
polytunnel, more planting areas, an improved mud kitchen and Forest Schools circle. Revoe Park 
hosted a visit by HRH Duke and Duchess of Cambridge in March, who came to the community garden 
to talk to families who benefit from the space and Better Start investment there.  
 

10.1.3 In Claremont Park, the Better Start investment has created an Early Years extension to Claremont 
Park play area costing £180,000. The team undertook consultation with families and the chosen 
design included a pirate ship, double width slide, roundabout for wheelchairs and pushchairs, extra 
swings and toddler focused play panels and multi-units. The investment in the wider park has seen 
the addition of paths to encourage parents with pushchairs within the park and a Forest Circle 
installed to enable park ranger activities in all weathers.  
 

10.2  Stanley Park  
 

10.2.1 Stanley Park is a Grade 2 Heritage destination park which received the Fields in Trust Award for Best 
Park in the United Kingdom in 2017. The Parks and Green Environment Service work closely with 
Friends of Stanley Park and Salisbury woodlands to improve   the park, run events and promote the 
site. Projects undertaken in 2018/19 include:  

 new £450 000 high specification 3G football pitch installed adjacent to the Sports Centre and 
opened by Rio Ferdinand on Dec 2018 

 a new leaflet was created showcasing the features of Stanley Park 

 refurbishment of the toilets next to the Visitor Centre   

 creation of a Dog Club, attracting 50+ people who meet each week.  
 

10.2.2 A lake engineering study, funded by the Coastal Revival Fund, is currently being conducted to 
establish best management practices of removing the build-up of silt and addressing pond weed 
growth. APEM ltd have been contracted to undertake lake sediment samples and provide a 
methodology and costings to for future desilting works, which will be the catalyst for opening up the 
lake for a wider range of activities.  
 

10.3 Anchorsholme Park  
 

10.3.1 At present Anchorsholme Park is currently closed whilst United Utilities are installing a new pumping 
station and storm outflow. The Parks and Green Environment Service have been working closely with 
United Utilities and their principle contractor C2V+ to ensure the new park is the best it can be. This 
has included the procurement and installation of a Riverdance themed £240,000 play area which aims 
to provide a unique and imaginative play space which is inclusive for children with a range of ages and 
abilities. The site which also includes a café, amphitheatre, Multi-Use Games Area and Bowling 
facilities which will be opened later in the year.  
 

10.4 Fishers Field  
 

10.4.1 United Utilities have also been putting in a new storm storage tank under the Fisher Field site on 
Highfield Road. As a result of the works Foxhall Football Club have been playing their football matches 
at other venues within Blackpool.  The building work and the reinstatement of the football pitches is 

Page 126



now complete. A funding bid is to be submitted to the Football Foundation later this year for the 
replacement of Foxhall FC’s changing rooms estimated in the region of £300,000.  
 

10.5 Layton Recreational Ground  
 

10.5.1 Layton Recreational Ground will be reopened this year following a full development as part of the 
redevelopment of Queens Park site. The Parks and Green Environment Service have been working 
with Blackpool Housing to ensure a high quality open space with improved play facilities within the 
housing area. The £100,000 play area, £50,000 of which is from Better Start, will ensure there is a 
diverse play offer for the new residents.  
 

10.6 Common Edge 
 

10.6.1 The Parks and Green Environment Service is currently working with Procurement on the tender 
process for the relocation of the grass football pitches to support colleagues on the Enterprise Zone 
delivery plan. It is envisaged that work to construct the pitches will start later this year  
 

10.7 Wider Park Developments  
 

10.7.1 In partnership with the Friends of Highfield Road a new Multi-use games area has been installed and 
the tennis courts refurbished.   
 

10.7.2 A new Multi-use Games area has been created at Mereside in partnership with Blackpool Coastal 
Housing and local residents of Mereside Friends in Action (MAFIA). Thanks to funding from Blackpool 
Coastal Housing we resurfaced the BMX pump track this year.  
 

10.7.3 At East Pines park, the team have worked in partnership with the Friends of East Pines Park to add 
additional play equipment including a boat, basket swing and improve the safety surfacing. They have 
removed hedges and installed fences to increase visibility in the park and reduce anti-social behavior 
 

10.7.4 Following the removal of disused toilets at Devonshire Square, this area has been landscaped and 
planted with selection of shrubs and trees planted to improve the site.  Sparrow Park, the grass area 
outside Raikes Parade has also had additional planting, chosen to complement the Devonshire Square 
space and bring year round colour and interest to the site.  
 

10.7.5 The Parks and Green Environment Service worked with Keep Britain Tidy to improve Gateside park 
through a £100,000 funding grant from Willkos. The project included planting over 100 new trees, 
improving paths and adding welcoming entrance features.   
 

10.7.6 In partnership with Better Start and Property Services a development scheme is being worked up for 
the hub at Talbot and Brunswick Children Centre. Work will include additional play equipment, 
removal of walls and creation of a more welcoming park. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No  

  

Page 127



11.0 List of Appendices: 
 

  

11.1 Appendix 10(a) – Budget Monitoring 2017-2018 
Appendix 10(b) – Budget Monitoring 2018-2019 
 

  

12.0 Legal considerations 
 

12.1 None 
 

13.0 
 

Human Resources considerations 
 

13.1 
 

The Park and Green Environment Service employs 30 staff. 
 

14.0 
 

Equalities considerations 
 

14.1 The aim of the Parks and Green Environment Service is to ensure accessibility for all interests and 
abilities. 
 

15.0 Financial considerations 
 

15.1 Revenue savings and investment in the Parks and Green Environment have been considerable. 
 

15.2 See Appendix 10(a) and Appendix 10(b). 
 

16.0 Risk management considerations 
 

16.1 The Parks and Green Environment Service operates within a robust risk assessment framework 
 

17.0 Ethical considerations 
 

17.1 The Parks and Green Environment Service adhere to the Ethical policy of the Council in ensuring 
appropriate use of the town’s parks and open spaces. 
 

18.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken 
 

18.1 None 
 

19.0 Background papers 
 

19.1 None 
 

 
 

Page 128



Appendix 10(a)

BUDGET MONITORING - PARKS 2017/2018

Cost Centre: PARKS

Level: 5

Description: Parks

Account 

Code Description 13

Actual Spend 

to Date

Actual + 

Projected Spend Budget

(Under) / 

Overspend Last Years Actual

EXPENDITURE

0000 Total Salaries -  778,671 778,671 837,534 (58,863) 759,986

0100 Wages 47,912 84,865 84,865 -  84,865 15,203

0700 Contracted Temp & Relief -  -  -  -  -  -  

0800 Other Employee Expenses -  422 422 500 (78) 1,050

0900 Indirect Employee Exps. -  83,550 83,550 80,391 3,159 71,860

00 Employees 47,912 947,508 947,508 918,425 29,082 848,098

1000 Maintenance 100,457 214,720 214,720 75,500 139,220 261,377

1100 Fixed Plant Maintenance 259 2,510 2,510 3,400 (890) 2,851

1200 Energy Costs 24,532 35,435 35,435 35,368 67 18,595

1300 Rents, Rates & Council Tax -  5,359 5,359 5,884 (525) 5,881

1400 Water Services 62,194 21,996 21,996 31,134 (9,138) 22,127

1500 Fixtures And Fittings -  -  -  -  -  -  

1600 Cleaning & Domestic Supplies -  349 349 -  349 386

1700 Use of Buildings -  -  -  -  -  -  

1800 Premises Insurance -  -  -  -  -  -  

1900 Contrib Reserves & Funds -  -  -  -  -  -  

10 Premises Related Expenses187,442 280,369 280,369 151,286 129,083 311,216

2000 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 35,426 207,919 207,919 188,900 19,019 199,734

2100 Recharge of Transport -  -  -  -  -  -  

2200 Contract Hire & Leases -  -  -  -  -  9,416

2300 Public Transport -  44 44 -  44 -  

2400 Vehicle Allowances -  540 540 1,074 (534) 1,926

2500 Transport Insurance -  6,318 6,318 6,318 -  -  

2600 Car Parking Charges -  -  -  -  -  -  

2700 General Staff Travel -  -  -  -  -  -  

20 Transport Related Expenses35,426 214,821 214,821 196,292 18,529 211,077

3000 Equipment & Materials 5,871 88,047 88,047 76,000 12,047 254,626

3100 Catering -  -  -  -  -  -  

3200 Clothing & Laundry -  2,100 2,100 3,000 (900) 1,590

3300 General Office Expenses 451 1,780 1,780 1,800 (20) 1,317

3400 Services 21,427 49,238 49,238 28,500 20,738 48,950

3500 Communicats. & Computing 8 8,986 8,986 4,794 4,192 10,833

3600 Expenses 175 315 315 -  315 -  

3700 Grants & Subscriptions -  10,000 10,000 10,000 -  -  

3800 Miscellaneous Expenses 390 3,839 3,839 63,388 (59,549) 2,860

3900 Contributions to Funds 20,000 20,000 20,000 -  20,000 5,451

30 Supplies & Services 48,322 184,305 184,305 187,482 (3,177) 325,627

4000 Other Council Committees -  -  -  -  -  -  

4100 Other Local Authorities -  -  -  -  -  -  

4200 Joint Authorities -  -  -  -  -  -  

4300 Govt Depts Summary -  -  -  -  -  -  

4400 Voluntary Associations -  -  -  -  -  -  

4500 Private Contractors 31,500 53,804 53,804 16,000 37,804 88,545

4600 Pooling Contributions -  -  -  -  -  -  

4700 Other Contract Services -  -  -  -  -  -  

4800 Contract Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

40 Third Party Payments 31,500 53,804 53,804 16,000 37,804 88,545

5000 Housing Benefits -  -  -  -  -  -  

5100 Other Transfer Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

5300 Maintenance Allowances -  -  -  -  -  -  

5400 Aids to Daily Living -  -  -  -  -  -  

5500 Asst to Families -  -  -  -  -  -  

5550 Leaving Care Act Pay / Allowance -  -  -  -  -  -  

5600 General Transfer Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

5700 Collection Fund Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

50 Transfer Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

6000 Admin Building Expenses -  -  -  -  -  -  

6100 Central Expenses -  -  -  -  -  -  

6200 Central Services -  72,600 72,600 72,600 -  116,979

6300 Departmental Admin. 2,726 18,697 18,697 20,000 (1,303) 16,579

6400 Capital Financing Costs -  277,775 277,775 277,775 231,052

6500 Capital Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

6600 Smfgb -  -  -  -  -  -  

60 Central Support Services 2,726 369,071 369,071 370,375 (1,303) 364,610

6901 B/F Unders/(Overs) -  -  -  -  -  -  

-  -  -  -  -  -  

6911 Target Savings -  -  -  -  -  -  

-  -  -  -  -  -  

GEXP Total Expenditure 353,328 2,049,877 2,049,877 1,839,860 210,018 2,149,171

INCOME

7000 Government Grants -  -  -  -  -  -  

70 Government Grants -  -  -  -  -  -  

7100 Agency Reimbursements-summary -  -  -  -  -  -  

7110 Contn's from OLA's-summary -  -  -  -  -  -  

7120 Receipts from Other Funds-summary -  (845) (845) -  (845) (8,446)

7170 Sponsorship -  -  -  -  -  -  

7180 Other Income 63,263 (196,894) (196,894) (5,411) (191,483) (151,999)

7190 Other Grants, etc-summary 355 (90,347) (90,347) (50,000) (40,347) (343,298)

71 Other Grants & Contns. 63,617 (288,086) (288,086) (55,411) (232,675) (503,743)

7200 Sales -  -  -  -  -  -  

7220 Rents & Lettings 4,375 (125,878) (125,878) (123,745) (2,133) (122,686)

7250 Other Costs Recovered -  -  -  -  -  -  

7300 Fees & Charges -  (57,529) (57,529) (41,340) (16,189) (15,777)

72 Customer & Client Rcpts 4,375 (183,407) (183,407) (165,085) (18,322) (138,463)

7860 Interest -  -  -  -  -  -  

78 Interest -  -  -  -  -  -  

7970 Recharges to other A/c's -  (1,262,913) (1,262,913) (1,275,000) 12,088 (82,271)

79 Recharges to other A/c's -  (1,262,913) (1,262,913) (1,275,000) 12,088 (82,271)

TINC TOTAL INCOME 67,992 (1,734,405) (1,734,405) (1,495,496) (238,909) (724,477)

NEXP NET EXPENDITURE 421,321 315,472 315,472 344,364 (28,892) 1,424,695

BUDGET VARIATION: -8.4%

315,472 344,364

315,472 344,364

0 0 Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 10(b)

BUDGET MONITORING - PARKS 2018/2019

Cost Centre:PARKS

Level: 5

Description:Parks

Accoun

t Code Description 13

Actual Spend to 

Date

Actual + Projected 

Spend Budget

(Under) / 

Overspend Last Years Actual

EXPENDITURE

0000 Total Salaries -  853,699 853,699 878,584 (24,885) 778,671

0100 Wages -  23,309 23,309 -  23,309 84,865

0700 Contracted Temp & Relief -  -  -  -  -  -  

0800 Other Employee Expenses -  822 822 500 322 422

0900 Indirect Employee Exps. 26,663 58,382 58,382 65,416 (7,034) 83,550

00 Employees 26,663 936,211 936,211 944,500 (8,289) 947,508

1000 Maintenance 43,577 284,129 284,129 75,500 208,629 214,720

1100 Fixed Plant Maintenance 275 2,548 2,548 3,400 (852) 2,510

1200 Energy Costs 53,787 34,239 34,239 38,858 (4,619) 35,435

1300 Rents, Rates & Council Tax -  3,817 3,817 5,805 (1,988) 5,359

1400 Water Services 81,016 39,506 39,506 33,624 5,882 21,996

1500 Fixtures And Fittings -  -  -  -  -  -  

1600 Cleaning & Domestic Supplies -  503 503 -  503 349

1700 Use of Buildings -  -  -  -  -  -  

1800 Premises Insurance -  -  -  -  -  -  

1900 Contrib Reserves & Funds -  -  -  -  -  -  

10 Premises Related Expenses 178,655 364,742 364,742 157,187 207,555 280,369

2000 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 25,071 225,116 225,116 166,900 58,216 207,919

2100 Recharge of Transport -  -  -  -  -  -  

2200 Contract Hire & Leases -  84 84 -  84 -  

2300 Public Transport -  87 87 -  87 44

2400 Vehicle Allowances -  676 676 1,000 (324) 540

2500 Transport Insurance -  6,761 6,761 6,761 6,318

2600 Car Parking Charges -  -  -  -  -  -  

2700 General Staff Travel -  -  -  -  -  -  

20 Transport Related Expenses 25,071 232,725 232,725 174,661 58,064 214,821

3000 Equipment & Materials 15,242 134,124 134,124 76,000 58,124 88,047

3100 Catering -  -  -  -  -  -  

3200 Clothing & Laundry -  2,522 2,522 3,000 (478) 2,100

3300 General Office Expenses 614 2,968 2,968 1,800 1,168 1,780

3400 Services 5,792 39,585 39,585 32,223 7,362 49,238

3500 Communicats. & Computing 86 9,493 9,493 4,794 4,699 8,986

3600 Expenses -  -  -  -  -  315

3700 Grants & Subscriptions -  10,000 10,000 10,000 -  10,000

3800 Miscellaneous Expenses (7,514) 45,190 45,190 69,179 (23,989) 3,839

3900 Contributions to Funds 80,000 80,000 80,000 -  80,000 20,000

30 Supplies & Services 94,220 323,881 323,881 196,996 126,885 184,305

4000 Other Council Committees -  -  -  -  -  -  

4100 Other Local Authorities -  -  -  -  -  -  

4200 Joint Authorities -  -  -  -  -  -  

4300 Govt Depts Summary -  -  -  -  -  -  

4400 Voluntary Associations -  -  -  -  -  -  

4500 Private Contractors 530 287,826 287,826 16,000 271,826 53,804

4600 Pooling Contributions -  -  -  -  -  -  

4700 Other Contract Services -  -  -  -  -  -  

4800 Contract Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

40 Third Party Payments 530 287,826 287,826 16,000 271,826 53,804

5000 Housing Benefits -  -  -  -  -  -  

5100 Other Transfer Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

5300 Maintenance Allowances -  -  -  -  -  -  

5400 Aids to Daily Living -  -  -  -  -  -  

5500 Asst to Families -  -  -  -  -  -  

5550 Leaving Care Act Pay / Allowance -  -  -  -  -  -  

5600 General Transfer Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

5700 Collection Fund Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

50 Transfer Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

6000 Admin Building Expenses -  -  -  -  -  -  

6100 Central Expenses -  -  -  -  -  -  

6200 Central Services -  77,300 77,300 77,300 -  72,600

6300 Departmental Admin. 5,310 21,181 21,181 20,000 1,181 18,697

6400 Capital Financing Costs -  284,151 284,151 284,151 277,775

6500 Capital Payments -  -  -  -  -  -  

6600 Smfgb -  -  -  -  -  -  

60 Central Support Services 5,310 382,632 382,632 381,451 1,181 369,071

6901 B/F Unders/(Overs) -  -  -  -  -  -  

-  -  -  -  -  -  

6911 Target Savings -  -  -  -  -  -  

-  -  -  -  -  -  

GEXP Total Expenditure 330,450 2,528,016 2,528,016 1,870,795 657,221 2,049,877

INCOME

7000 Government Grants 5,000 (20,000) (20,000) -  (20,000) -  

70 Government Grants 5,000 (20,000) (20,000) -  (20,000) -  

7100 Agency Reimbursements-summary -  -  -  -  -  -  

7110 Contn's from OLA's-summary -  -  -  -  -  -  

7120 Receipts from Other Funds-summary -  (53,599) (53,599) -  (53,599) (845)

7170 Sponsorship -  -  -  -  -  -  

7180 Other Income 43,966 (308,150) (308,150) (5,162) (302,988) (196,894)

7190 Other Grants, etc-summary (228,132) (351,391) (351,391) (59,500) (291,891) (90,347)

71 Other Grants & Contns. (184,166) (713,141) (713,141) (64,662) (648,479) (288,086)

7200 Sales -  -  -  -  -  -  

7220 Rents & Lettings 4,375 (128,728) (128,728) (123,745) (4,983) (125,878)

7250 Other Costs Recovered -  -  -  -  -  -  

7300 Fees & Charges 28,000 (35,421) (35,421) (41,340) 5,919 (57,529)

72 Customer & Client Rcpts 32,375 (164,149) (164,149) (165,085) 936 (183,407)

7860 Interest -  -  -  -  -  -  

78 Interest -  -  -  -  -  -  

7970 Recharges to other A/c's -  (1,634,437) (1,634,437) (1,640,217) 5,781 (1,262,913)

79 Recharges to other A/c's -  (1,634,437) (1,634,437) (1,640,217) 5,781 (1,262,913)

TINC TOTAL INCOME (146,791) (2,531,726) (2,531,726) (1,869,964) (661,762) (1,734,405)

NEXP NET EXPENDITURE 183,659 (3,710) (3,710) 831 (4,541) 315,472

BUDGET VARIATION: -546.6%

(3,710) 831

(3,710) 831

0 0

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 

Date of Meeting:  19 June 2019 

 

SCRUTINY WORKPLAN 
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider the Workplan and to monitor the implementation of Committee 
recommendations, together with any suggestions that Members may wish to make 
for scrutiny review topics, to note the Single Use Plastics update and approve the 
establishment of a Community Safety Partnership Review Panel. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 

To note the remit of the Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
following the May 2019 Local Election. 
 
To approve the Committee Workplan, taking into account any suggestions for 
amendment or addition. 
 
To monitor the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations/action. 
 
To note progress of the implementation of the Single-Use Plastics (SUP) Policy and 
Action Plan. 
 
To approve the establishment of a Community Safety Partnership Review Panel. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To ensure that recommendations/actions are being monitored, the Workplan is up 
to date and is an accurate representation of the Committee’s work. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 
 

N/A 

Page 133

Agenda Item 11



3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 N/A 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
 
5.1.2 

Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee remit 
 
Following the May 2019 Local Elections the Council agreed at its annual meeting to 
amend the remits of the scrutiny committees. As a result of this the Tourism, Economy 
and Resources Scrutiny Committee has become the Tourism, Economy and Communities 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The remit of the Committee is outlined as; 
 

1. To scrutinise all functions and responsibilities of the Council except for Children’s 
Services, Adult Services and Public Health. 

 
2. To undertake financial management monitoring of the services that fall under the 

remit of the Committee including holding relevant budget holders to account.  
 

3. To monitor and comment on the Council’s treasury management strategy, 
medium term financial strategy and any other overarching financial strategies 
deemed appropriate. 

 
4. To discharge the Council’s additional statutory responsibilities in terms of crime 

and disorder scrutiny (Sections 19 to 22 of the Police and Justice Act, 2006) 
 

5. To discharge the Council’s additional statutory responsibilities in terms of flood 
risk (Chapter 2, 9FH of the Localism Act 2011) 

 
5.2 
 
5.2.1 
 
 
 
5.2.2 

Scrutiny Workplan 
 
The Scrutiny Committee Workplan is attached at Appendix 11(a). The Workplan is a 
flexible document that sets out the work that the Committee will undertake over 
the course of the year.  
 
Committee Members are invited, either now or in the future, to suggest topics that 
might be suitable for scrutiny in order that they be added to the Workplan. 
 

Page 134



5.2.3 A Scrutiny Workplanning Workshop will be held prior to the Committee meeting on 
Wednesday 19 June 2019. As this will be after the publication of the agenda the 
workplan will be updated following the meeting to reflect the workshop following 
the meeting. 
 

5.3 
 
5.3.1 

Scrutiny Leadership Board 
 
The Council has established a Scrutiny Leadership Board (SLB), Chaired by Councillor 
Mrs Callow to co-ordinate the scrutiny function at Blackpool and to undertake 
scrutiny of cross-cutting strategies and plans amongst other things. As a result the 
Workplan of the Committee will be submitted to the Scrutiny Leadership Board for 
consideration and requests could be made by the Board to include additional work 
or make amendments. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee are members of 
the SLB and will provide liaison as appropriate between the Committee and Board. 
 

5.4 
 
5.4.1 
 
 
 
 
5.4.2 
 
 

Monitoring Implementation of Recommendations  
 
The table attached at Appendix 11(c) has been developed to assist the Committee 
in effectively ensuring that the recommendations made by the Committee are 
acted upon.  The table will be regularly updated and submitted to each Committee 
meeting.  
 
Members are requested to consider the updates provided in the table and ask 
follow up questions as appropriate to ensure that all recommendations are 
implemented. 
 

5.5 
 
5.5.1 
 
 
 
 
5.5.2 
 
 

Scrutiny Review Checklist 
 
The Scrutiny Review Checklist is attached at Appendix 11(b). The checklist forms 
part of the mandatory scrutiny procedure for establishing review panels and must 
therefore be completed and submitted for consideration by the Committee, prior to 
a topic being approved for scrutiny. 
 
The Committee is recommended to place an emphasis on the priorities and 
performance of the Council when considering requests for scrutiny reviews. 
 

5.6 Single-Use Plastics Policy Update 
 

5.6.1 
 
 
 

At its 23 January 2019 meeting the Tourism, Economy and Resources (TER) Scrutiny 
Committee received an update on the implementation of a Single-Use Plastics (SUP) 
Policy which sought to end the use of SUPs by May 2020. 
 

5.6.2 At this meeting it was agreed that updates on progress would be provided twice 
yearly to ensure monitoring of the implementation of the policy within the 

Page 135



timescale set by the full Council. As the successor committee to TER the Tourism, 
Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee has taken responsibility for this. 
 

5.6.3 The draft SUP policy was presented to Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) on the 12 
February 2019 and subsequently gained executive approval subject to further 
consultation with the wholly owned companies. 
 

5.6.4 The policy is then due to be presented before the Extended CLT group meeting, 
including the Managing Directors (MD) of the wholly owned companies, on the 9 
July 2019. Although many of the companies MD are already aware of the policy and 
have begun work on it. 
 

5.6.5 Feedback from CLT was that a day be set for implementation and internally 
communicate the policy amongst staff. The date is to be confirmed but will be this 
summer. 
 

5.6.6 As a result of development of the policy, moves have already been made to reduce 
the use of SUP across the organisation. Items that have been replaced are products 
like plastic stirrers and composite coffee cups being replaced for wooden stirrers 
and compostable, starch-lined paper cups. 
 

5.6.7 Consultation with Procurement in relation to what existing suppliers can offer as 
suitable sustainable alternatives has also taken place as well factoring in the 
reduction of SUP in to any new contracts let by the Council. Catering Services 
disposable-items price benchmarking exercises have begun and are underway. 
 

5.6.8 Consideration has also been given to replacing existing coffee cartridge machines 
with ‘bean-to-cup’ solutions which cuts out the disposable plastic cartridge, when 
these machines are due to be replaced. 
 

5.6.9 In terms of the wider picture, since publication of central governments Resources 
and Waste Strategy there have been a number of public consultations including in 
relation to the percentage of recycled content required in new plastic items and 
also around the consistency of materials collected, both of which are expected to 
impact on the level of SUP’s used in the supply chain. Also the banning of plastic 
straws and ear buds is due to come in to force soon. 
 

5.6.10 The SUP Action Plan is included at Appendix 11(d) for information. 
 

5.7 Community Safety Partnership Review Panel 
 

5.7.1 The TEC Scrutiny Committee is the Council’s statutory Crime and Disorder Panel and 
as such is required to meet at least once a year in this capacity. 
 

Page 136



5.7.2 In previous years consideration of crime and disorder has taken the form of 
receiving the Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) Annual Report as an agenda 
item at a formal committee meeting. 
 

5.7.3 This year it has been proposed that a dedicated review panel be organised to 
consider the work of the CSP and its priorities for the future. This will allow 
members of the committee to take an in-depth look at the partnerships 
performance over the past year and comment on its ongoing priorities. 
 

5.7.4 The meeting will also provide an opportunity to consider the priorities in the CSP’s 
draft Community Safety Plan and identify any areas of potential further scrutiny 
work for future meetings. 
 

5.7.5 Representatives of the CSP from Lancashire Constabulary, the Clinical 
Commissioning Group, the National Probation Service and the Fire and Rescue 
Service will be in attendance at the review panel to allow a wider range of 
questioning and views to be expressed. 
 

5.7.6 The date proposed for the review panel is Wednesday 17 July 2019 at 2.00pm. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 
 

No 

5.7 List of Appendices: 
 

 

 Appendix 11(a) – Draft Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee Workplan 
Appendix 11(b) - Scrutiny Review Checklist 
Appendix 11(c) – Tourism, Economy and Communities Committee 
Action Tracker 
Appendix 11(d) – SUP Action Plan – April 2019 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 

 
7.0 Human Resources considerations: 

 
7.1 
 

None. 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 
 

Page 137



 
9.0 Financial considerations: 

 
9.1 
 

In relation to the SUP update there may be potential additional costs associated 
with sourcing suitable sustainable alternative non-single use plastic products. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 Potential reputational damage due to continued use of SUP’s. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

The SUP policy supports the Councils ethical pursuit of corporate social 
responsibility and sustainability (including organisational resilience) as well as the 
Councils core values. 
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

Internal and external consultation are anticipated to take place as the SUP Policy is 
implemented. 
 

 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 
 
13.2 

Single Use Plastics (SUP) Policy Update – 23 January 2019 Tourism, Economy and 
Resources Scrutiny Committee Report 
 
Our Waste, Our resources: A Strategy for England (2018) 

 

Page 138



Appendix 11(a), Date revised: 7 June 2019 

Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2019-2020 

23 

January 

2019 

(TER) 

1. Financial Reporting 
2. Town Centre Regeneration Update – To include information on the progress and forecasts 
for current regeneration projects. 
3. Single Use Plastic Update 

 

19 June 

2019 

1. Provisional Revenue Outturn 2017/2018 
2. Treasury Management Outturn Report 2017/2018 
3. Tourism Performance Update – To include a representative of a Blackpool Tourist attraction. 
4. Single Use Plastics Update – To include information on performance against the SUP Action 
Plan. 
5. Leisure Services Update Report 
6. Parks and Green Environment Update Report 
 

9 

October 

2019 

1. Financial Reporting 
2. Car Parking Annual Performance 2018/2019 
3. Town Centre Regeneration Update – To include information on the progress and forecast for 
current and planned regeneration projects. 
4. Annual Council Plan Performance report on whole of Priority One – To include performance 
info on areas not cover in other annual reports. 
4. Blackpool Community Safety Partnership Task and Finish Group Report. – To update 
members on the outcomes of the July 2019 meeting with representatives of the CSP. 
 

4 Dec 

2019 

1. Financial Reporting 
2. Tourism Performance Update - To include a representative of a Blackpool Tourist attraction. 

3.Annual Engagement of Consultants Annual Report 

4. Annual Customer Feedback Report 
5. Single Use Plastics Update – To include information on performance against the SUP Action 
Plan. 
6. Housing Strategy Task and Finish Group Report - To update members on the outcomes of 
the Sept 2019 meeting on the Housing Strategy. 
 

5 Feb 

2020 

1. Financial Reporting 
2. Town Centre Regeneration Update – To include information on the progress and forecast for 
current and planned regeneration projects. 
 

Future 

Items 

1. Performance of Blackpool CSP – Task and finish Group to discuss performance 2018-
2019 and the draft CSP Plan. – 17 July 2019 

2. Housing Strategy -  Task and finish Group – Sept 2019 

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 11(b) 

SCRUTINY SELECTION CHECKLIST 
 
Title of proposed Scrutiny:  
 
The list is intended to assist the relevant scrutiny committee in deciding whether or not to approve a 
topic that has been suggested for scrutiny. 
 
Whilst no minimum or maximum number of ‘yes’ answers are formally required, the relevant scrutiny 
committee is recommended to place higher priority on topics related to the performance and 
priorities of the Council. 
 
Please expand on how the proposal will meet each criteria you have answered ‘yes’ to. 

Yes/No 

The review will add value to the Council and/or its partners overall performance: 
 

 

The review is in relation to one or more of the Council’s priorities: 
 

 

The Council or its partners are not performing well in this area: 
 

 

It is an area where a number of complaints (or bad press) have been received: 
 

 

The issue is strategic and significant: 
 

 

There is evidence of public interest in the topic: 
 

 

The issue has potential impact for one or more sections of the community: 
 

 

Service or policy changes are planned and scrutiny could have a positive input: 
 

 

Adequate resources (both members and officers) are available to carry out the scrutiny: 
 

 

 

Page 141



  Appendix 11(b) 

Please give any further details on the proposed review: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Completed by: Date: 

 

Page 142



Date last updated: 23.01.19       Appendix 11 (c) 
        
 
TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY - ACTION TRACKER 

 

REC 
NO. 

DATE OF 
REC. 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICR 

UPDATE (NOTE - ANY EXTENSIVE RESPONSES ARE 
FURTHER BELOW AFTER THE END OF THE TABLE) 

RED 
AMBER 
GREEN  

1 23 
January 
2019 

That bi-annual updates on the 
implementation of the Single Use 
Plastics Policy be included on future 
agendas 
 

May 
2020 

John-Paul 
Lovie/John 
Greenbank 

Items for monitoring the implementation of the SUP 
policy have been scheduled for 19 June 2019 and 5 
February 2020. 

 

2 23 
January 
2019 

That bi-annual updates on the 
progress of Town Centre Regeneration 
Projects be included on future 
agendas 
 

Ongoing Nick 
Gerard/John 
Greenbank 

Items for monitoring the progress of Town Centre 
Regeneration Project have been scheduled for 9 
October 2019 and 5 February 2020. 

 

 

P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 11(d) 

 

Minimisation of single-use plastics  
Updated Action Plan – April 2019 

 

Date Action Supporting Communications Activity Responsible officers 

Sept 18 
 

 Scrutiny Report on SUP 

 Review council use of SUP’s 

 n/a 

 n/a 
 

 JP Lovie (JPL) 

 JPL 

Dec 19 
 
 

 Draft policy developed for approval 

 Charter version for signing developed 

 n/a 

 Review and proof draft charter 

 JPL 

 SB/Comms 

Jan 19 
 

 Source availability and supply of suitable alternatives to 
plastic stirrers, milk pots, composite coffee cups and 
water cups 

 Internal comms launch via Hub and January 
e-newsletter.  

 Press release to local media 

 Comms 
 

 Comms 

Feb 19 
 

 Present report to CLT for executive approval 

 Pre-election period starts 12/03/19 
 

 n/a  N/A 

March/April 
19 
 

 Plan Easter ‘beach-clean’ with Keep Blackpool Tidy 
volunteers 

 Easter recycling campaign 

 Create content for social media for beach 
clean. Promote via local press 

 

 Comms 
 

May 19 
 

 Review of Procurement policies to build in 
environmental sustainability with a focus on SUP 
 

 n/a  JPL 
 

June 19  Consultation with wholly owned companies at Extended 
Corporate Leadership Team 

 Bin For Green Seas National Launch (plastic bottles) 

 Internal SUP Policy launch day to be determined 

 n/a 
 

 Press release to local media, social media 

 Internal comms/Hub/e-newsletter 

 N/A 
 

 Comms 

 JPL/Comms 

July 19  Disposables price benchmarking exercise completed 

 Implementation of sustainable alternatives completed 

 n/a 

 Internal comms/HUB/Newsletter 

 Procurement 

  

P
age 145



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF TOURISM ECONOMY AND RESOURCES HELD ON 23 JANUARY 2019
	Minutes

	4 TOURISM PERFORMANCE UPDATE
	5 EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS
	Item 5a - Executive Decisions

	6 FORWARD PLAN
	Item 6a - Forward Plan - June 2019 to Sept 2019

	7 PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2018/2019
	Item 7a - Provisional Outturn 2018-19 -Director of Resources Report
	Item 7b  - Provisional Outturn 2018-19 - Outturn Summary
	Item 7c to 7m  - Provisional Outturn 2018-19 - Summaries
	Item 7n  - Provisional Outturn 2018-19 - Capital Outturn Summary

	8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
	Item 8a -Treasury Management Outturn - Report
	Item 8b - Treasury Management Outturn - Debt Fallout 2019-19
	Item 8c - Treasury Management Outturn - Base Rates 2019-19
	Item 8d - Treasury Management Outturn - Statistics 2019-19
	Item 8e -Treasury Management Outturn - Comparison of Budget to Actuals 2018-19
	Item 8f - Treasury Management Outturn - Prudential Indicators 2018-19

	9 LEISURE SERVICES UPDATE
	Item 9a - Leisure Services Scrutiny Report - Leisure Background
	Item 9b - Leisure Services Scrutiny Report - Leisure performance dashboard
	Item 9c - Leisure Services Scrutiny Report - NPS Overview

	10 PARKS AND GREEN ENVIRONMENT SERVICE UPDATE
	Item 10(a) - Parks and Environmental Report - Financial Summary 17-18
	Item 10(b) - Parks and Environmental Report - Financial Summary 18-19

	11 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN
	Item 11a -  Scrutiny Workplan - Work Progamme
	Item 11b - Scrutiny Workplan - Scrutiny Selection Checklist
	Item 11c - Scrutiny Workplan - Action Tracker
	Item 11d - Scrutiny Workplan - SUP Action Plan


